
 

   Department of Transportation 
   Board of Directors  
                          Notice of Public Meeting 
   1263 South Stewart Street 
   Third Floor Conference Room 
   Carson City, Nevada 
   July 6, 2015 – 9:00 a.m. 

 
 REVISED AGENDA 

 
1. Presentation of Retirement Plaques to 25+ Year Employees – Informational item only. 

 
2. Presentation of Awards – Informational item only. 
 
3. Receive Director’s Report – Informational item only. 
 
4. Public Comment – limited to no more than three (3) minutes. The public may comment on 

Agenda items prior to action by submitting a request to speak to the Chairman before the 
Meeting begins. Informational item only. 

 
5. June 8, 2015 Nevada Department of Transportation Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 

– For possible action. 
 
6. Approval of Agreements over $300,000 – For possible action. 
 
7. Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements – Informational item only.  
 
8. Resolution of Relinquishment – For possible action. 
 
 Disposal of NDOT right-of-way, located at the southwest corner at the intersection of 

West Sixth Street in the City of Reno, County of Washoe, State of Nevada;  SUR 14-10 
 
9. Resolution of Relinquishment – For possible action. 
 
 Disposal of NDOT right-of-way, a parcel of land of IR-580/US-395 (South of North Lompa 

Lane)  in Carson City, State of Nevada;  SUR 15-03 
 
 10. Condemnation Resolution No. 449 – For possible action. 
 
 I-15 Freeway, from Desert Inn Road to the US-95/I-515 Interchange, Project NEON; in 

the City of Las Vegas, Clark County; 5 owners – 7 parcels 
 
11. Old Business 
 

a. Report of Outside Counsel Costs on Open Matters – Informational item only. 
b. Monthly Litigation Report – Informational item only. 
c. Fatality Report dated June 23, 2015 – Informational item only. 

 
12. Briefing by the Regional Transportation Commission of Southern Nevada regarding the 

Transportation Investment Business Plan – Informational item only. 
 

  



 

13. Public Comment – limited to no more than three (3) minutes. The public may comment on 
Agenda items prior to action by submitting a request to speak to the Chairman before the 
Meeting begins.  Informational item only. 

 
14. Adjournment – For possible action. 

 
Notes:   
 

 Items on the agenda may be taken out of order. 
 The Board may combine two or more agenda items for consideration 
 The Board may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda 

at any time. 

 Reasonable efforts will be made to assist and accommodate physically handicapped persons desiring 
to attend the meeting. Requests for auxiliary aids or services to assist individuals with disabilities or 
limited English proficiency should be made with as much advance notice as possible to the 
Department of Transportation at (775) 888-7440.  

 This meeting is also expected to be available via video-conferencing, but is at least available via 
teleconferencing, at the Nevada Department of Transportation District One Office located at 123 East 
Washington, Las Vegas, Nevada in the Conference Room and at the District III Office located at 1951 
Idaho Street, Elko, Nevada. 

 Copies of non-confidential supporting materials provided to the Board are available upon request. 

 Request for such supporting materials should be made to Holli Stocks at (775) 888-7440 or 
hstocks@dot.state.nv.us. Such supporting material is available at 1263 South Stewart Street, Carson 
City, Nevada 89712 and if available on-line, at www.nevadadot.com. 
 

This agenda was posted at www.nevadadot.com and at the following locations: 
 
Nevada Dept. of Transportation Nevada Dept. of Transportation Nevada Dept. of Transportation 
1263 South Stewart Street 123 East Washington  310 Galletti Way 
Carson City, Nevada  Las Vegas, Nevada   Sparks, Nevada 
 
Nevada Dept. of Transportation Governor’s Office   Clark County 
1951 Idaho Street  Capitol Building   200 Lewis Avenue 
Elko, Nevada   Carson City, Nevada  Las Vegas, Nevada 
 
Washoe County   Carson City 
75 Court Street   885 East Musser Street 
Reno, Nevada   Carson City, Nevada 
 
 
 



 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 June 23, 2015 
 

TO: Department of Transportation Board of Directors 

FROM: Rudy Malfabon, Director 

SUBJECT: July 6, 2015, Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 

ITEM #2: Presentation of Awards – Informational Item Only 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Summary:  
 
This item is to recognize the Department of Transportation and staff for awards and recognition 
received. 
 
Carlin Tunnels Project 

2015 International Partnering Institute (IPI))  Partnered Project of the Year Award 

Transportation Projects--$25 to $250 Million Category 

 

NDOT and Contractor Q & D Construction were awarded IPI’s 2015 Partnered Project of the 

Year for the Carlin Tunnels Project.  IPI recognized NDOT and Q & D for implementing best 

partnering practices --including issue resolution and overall project outcome.  They were also 

acknowledged for fostering a high-trust and collaborative relationship on the project. 

    

Secretary of Defense 

Freedom Award 

 

NDOT was selected as a 2015 Freedom Award Nominee in recognition of exemplary support of 

National Guard and Reserve member employees.   

 

Recommendation for Board Action: 
 
This is an informational item only. 
 
Attachments: 
 
None 
 
Prepared by: 
 
Julie Duewel, Public Information Officer 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 

Fax:      (775) 888-7201 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

1 

 

Governor Brian Sandoval 

Controller Ron Knecht 

Frank Martin 

Tom Skancke 

Len Savage 

Tom Fransway 

Rudy Malfabon 

Bill Hoffman 

Dennis Gallagher 

 

 

 

Sandoval: Good Morning.  I will call Transportation Board of Directors meeting to 

order.  We will commence with Agenda Item No. 1, which is the Director's 

Report.  Mr. Malfabon. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor, and good morning Board members.  I apologize for 

the dark hallways.  We're doing some recabling of some of the stuff in the 

ceilings. 

 I wanted to start out with special thanks to Tom Fransway, who's mentioned 

to me that this is his last Board meeting.  Three members of the Board were 

up for reconsideration by you, Governor.  And Tom put in his letter of intent 

to step off of the Board.  And I just wanted to thank you for your years of 

service, not only to the citizens of Nevada, but especially to the Nevada 

Department of Transportation serving on this Board.  Thank you, Tom. 

Fransway: Thank you, Rudy.  It's truly been an honor.  Time to spend a little more time 

with family and friends, but I can tell you I will always remember my eight 

years on the Board.  Thank you very much. 

Malfabon: I know that a lot of Board members will express some appreciation for that.  

We did get you a going away present, a picture of Winnemucca from 1949. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor, and thank you for this gift.  Garley and I were both 

one year old.  Thank you.  But I… 

Garley: I remember that street well. 

Fransway: Yes, I do.  Thank you very much. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

2 

 

Malfabon: Governor, I know that a lot of the members will have some comments and 

then maybe we can do a photo opportunity afterwards. 

Sandoval: Yeah, why don't we do that.  I have a few words now.  I don't get surprised 

too often, Tom, but I really want to thank you for your service to the State of 

Nevada.  I mean it's not often that you have somebody who serves on a 

board and really comes from the heart every single time.  And what is in the 

best interest of his constituency, in the rural counties, in Humboldt County.  

Again, it's unfortunately not common to have somebody who's honest as the 

day is long and who is sincere and always has people's best interests at 

heart.  But also fights for the folks that he represents on this Board.  So it's a 

rare, rare combination.  And I've learned a lot from you having served on 

this Board with you, and I admire you and I respect you and I appreciate 

you.  And I know it's cliché to say this will be a hard seat to fill, but it's true.  

It's absolutely true.  That's something that you don't say just to say it.  It's 

because of the man that you are and a person that has such a devotion to the 

State of Nevada. 

 And it wasn't just about the rural counties when it came to Clark County, 

when it came to Washoe County; any project throughout the State of 

Nevada.  I mean we had that joke not long ago about the bridge over the 

Truckee River, that land -- it rolled over four different agendas or three 

agendas, but you wanted it right.  You insisted that it be done right.  And 

that, again, sometimes folks will say, oh, that's just a little detail.  We'll let it 

go by.  You never did.  And so, Tom, thank you for what you've done for 

this Board, what you've done for Transportation in the State of Nevada, but 

most importantly, your decisions and your wisdom have gone into every 

project throughout the state, and it will touch people for generations to 

come.  Not to mention the safety and what you insisted upon, as well.  So, 

again, I am really going to miss you.  Really going to miss you.  Thank you. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  Hits me right here.  I appreciate it and it's certainly 

bittersweet.  It was a hard decision, but it's four more years and it's just a 

challenge for me.  And I can't tell you how much of an honor that it has been 

to serve with you and with the members of the Board.  Truly, I've developed 

a friendship with all of you and I will have that friendship all of my life.  

And so thank you for the opportunity, Governor, and it's been a pleasure 

working with all of you. 

Sandoval: Mr. Controller. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

3 

 

Knecht: Thank you, Governor.  And, Tom, this is mixed surprise.  It's very 

unpleasant to lose a person like yourself who was a role model to me.  And, 

of course, I'm very happy for you that you'll get to spend the time with your 

family.  I will tell you that eight years ago, when I was new on the Board of 

Regents, I had the pleasure of learning from then Chairman Bret Whipple.  

He became a really good friend over time, and I went to school on him.  I've 

been going to school on you and I suddenly feel like my education is 

interrupted and I don't know what I'm going to do, but I'm sure going to 

miss you.  Thank you for your service.  Thank you on behalf of the people 

of Nevada.  Thank you for being just a really good role model.  Sitting here 

and watching you go through the details in a really pleasant low-key way 

each meeting has been a real privilege and a real pleasure.  I think the only 

thing you ever messed up was you didn't give people an opportunity to get a 

chunk of that bridge.  But other than that, seriously, we will miss you and 

we really appreciate it.  And I think what the Governor said about statewide 

orientation for true public service in the public interest applies to you at least 

as much as anybody else.  Thanks. 

Sandoval: Thank you, Mr. Controller. 

Fransway: Thank you, Commissioner Controller. 

Sandoval: Member Savage. 

Savage: Thank you, Governor.  And, Tom, I don't want to be too repetitive, both the 

Governor and the Controller.  But you're a man of honor.  It's been a real 

privilege to serve next to you.  I'm really going to miss you.  Your visionary, 

your work ethic, your honesty, integrity.  It's going to be a hard place to fill.  

And I know I'll be calling you, so keep that phone line open.  But it's been a 

real pleasure, Tom Fransway, and all my best to you and your future and 

health.  Thank you, Tom. 

Fransway: Thank you, Len.  And Len and I have got some similar roots in that Len is 

pretty close to Humboldt County.  And his roots -- his Basque roots to the 

(Inaudible), and his mother I know very well and his aunt, the late Mary 

(Inaudible).  And so, Len, it's been very much of a pleasure sitting here next 

to you and watching you and what you've done with the Construction 

Working Group is incredible, and the time that you've spent in it, I 

appreciate that, Len, and also everyone that was involved.  And it wouldn't 

be right if I didn't say that this organization is top notch.  And the staff that 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

4 

 

I've had the privilege of working with -- Rudy, Bill, all of you -- it's been an 

honor and I appreciate that and I hope that we can continue our friendship 

into the future.  Thank you. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Tom. 

Sandoval: Frank, do you have any words? 

Martin: I was hoping I wouldn't be last.  But, Tom, you and I have been together -- 

you came on the Board the same time that I did originally.  And it's always 

been a pleasure, as the other gentlemen have said, to listen to your 

viewpoints.  I've always had a ready-fire-aim attitude towards my job, and 

you were the calming factor for me in many, many instances.  So I thank 

you for the things that I have learned.  And, Ron, I got to go to school on 

Tom's back.  So my contributions here, whatever they may be, are largely 

due to watching Tom and how he reacts and how he thinks and how he 

responds.  So, Tom, thank you very much. 

Fransway: Thank you, Frank.  It's been a pleasure working with you all these years.  

And you're right, you and I were appointed at the same time and it's been a 

really valuable experience working with you and the people in Southern 

Nevada.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: Member Skancke. 

Skancke: Thank you, Governor.  Tom, had I known that two meetings ago me giving 

you a hard time about that bridge was going to cause you to resign, I 

apologize.  I had no idea it was that important to you, and I'll reconsider my 

action from that day, if that helps.  In all seriousness, I'm the new guy here 

and it has been an honor to serve with you.  I've learned so much from you, 

and you're going to be missed from this Board, as the Governor said, the 

attention to detail and the dedication.  Transportation is serious business, 

and you take this business very seriously.  And it has been an honor for me 

to serve with you.  We're going to miss you tremendously, but wish you well 

and enjoy your free time, and as Len said, keep the line open.  We're going 

to need you.  Thank you very much. 

Fransway: Thank you, Tom.  It's been a pleasure working with you also.  And I can tell 

you that the vision that this Board and you, Governor, have taken over the 

past several years to move this state forward with our transportation needs 

has served the people who transit this state every day, and have served it 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

5 

 

well and will serve it well way into the future.  And it's been very much of 

an honor to be part of it.  Thank you all. 

Malfabon: Governor, if we could do the photo opportunity.  Next slide, please.  Good 

news on State Route 342 and our partnership with Comstock Mining.  They 

did complete the temporary road for State Route 342, up there near Virginia 

City.  And we have a short video to show you.  And I really thank Thor 

Dyson, our district engineer, for covering that event. 

Video: This road, State Route 342, between Silver City and Gold Hill was closed 

due to a lot of rain and a chronic problem.  The rain occurred in February, 

February 6th and 7th, and it turned out we had to close the road because water 

was just disappearing into the cracks.  The Silver Hills Mine Shaft was a 

chronic problem for over 68 years.  And essentially, it had a number of 

catastrophic failures, the most recent one being in 2005.  And here were are 

in 2015.  We had another failure, an imminent and catastrophic failure.  And 

today with the partnership with Comstock Mining, Storey County, the 

residents of Storey County, the residents of Virginia City, Silver City, and 

Gold Hill, we were able to open this road up earlier.  2,000 vehicles use this 

road a day.  It may not seem like a lot when you look at I-80, but it means a 

lot to the community of Virginia City, Silver City, and Gold Hill. 

We can appreciate that phase one of this project is not only done, but it's 

done ahead of schedule.  And we'd like to thank the Nevada Department of 

Transportation and their staff.  The project has undertaken unprecedented 

cooperation of state agencies, without whose combined assistance and 

urgency, it would have taken years to complete.  And… 

Malfabon: Sorry about the video problems, Governor. 

Video: (Inaudible) State Route 342, between Silver City and Gold Hill was closed 

due to a lot of rain and a chronic problem.  The rain occurred in February, 

February 6th and 7th, and it turned out we had to close the road because water 

was just disappearing into the cracks.  The Silver Hill Mine Shaft was a 

chronic problem for over 60 to 80 years.  And essentially… 

Unidentified Male: We can come back to it. 

Malfabon: Sure.  It was a well-produced video and I wanted to thank the staff that 

produced that.  And also Storey County Commissioners and Comstock 

Mining that were at that presentation.  Next slide. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

6 

 

 Also good news, the North Virginia Street signal by the Bonanza Casino 

was activated last week.  We held a media event that was well attended.  

And folks from the City of Reno, Mayor Schieve was there, several of the 

Washoe County commissioners and just about the -- if not, the entire Reno 

City Council was on hand there to celebrate that.  This is just the temporary 

signal, so PAR Electric was our contractor.  It cost a little bit over about 

$215,000 for the temporary signal.  And the City of Reno, my appreciation 

goes out to them for loaning us some traffic signal poles and then we'll 

replenish their stockpile as those poles come in.  So it was a good way to 

expedite the contract. 

 There is another permanent improvement that's over $1 million.  It's still 

under design right now.  We're looking at the utility issues and the sidewalk.  

Ryan Sheltra was a great partner there, the general manager.  He hosted the 

event there on-site, and he's working with us on the property for the future 

sidewalk and elimination of one of the driveways on the north end of his 

property.  Next slide. 

 A lot of media attention up here in Northern Nevada on the I-580 

reconstruction.  Major work began about three weeks ago with removal and 

replacement of some of the concrete pavement.  800 cubic yards of concrete 

has been placed on the southbound direction of I-580, south of the Spaghetti 

Bowl there.  We have three lanes in each direction during the temporary 

traffic control situation during the day.  With regular lane closures and some 

ramp closures at night, we issue regular press releases to the public so they 

know what their alternatives are.  And there is other construction work 

going on in Reno right now; the Southeast McCarran project by Washoe 

RTC, the bridge demolition going on right now on Virginia Street Bridge 

over the Truckee River.  So we ask that people just plan their routes and 

leave a little earlier than usual because of all this construction going on in 

the Washoe Valley area.  Next slide. 

 We reported recently that Nevada was number one in the nation in our 

bridge conditions.  That was from a Road and Transportation Builders 

Association report.  That was put to the test recently when we had a 

moderate earthquake north of Las Vegas.  It caused us to be concerned 

about a ramp on U.S. 95 to I-15 southbound.  We shut that ramp down while 

we conducted some structural inspections.  Good news is that there were no 

structural issues identified.  Our bridges are sound.  But you can see a 

photograph there of the bridge joint.  That's just a rubber material that fills 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

7 

 

the expansion joint on the bridge, and it was torn.  So we will be doing a 

contract to replace that joint.  Not a structural issue, although it looks worse 

than it actually is with that crack.  It's actually rubber material that's been -- 

over the years and in the heat of Las Vegas, it gets a little bit hard and 

cracked like that during the earthquake event.  Next slide. 

 We had our barrier rail hit on U.S. 395 north of Oddie Boulevard here in 

Northern Nevada.  And we will be doing an emergency contract to replace 

that rail.  So I'm just giving some notice to the public.  We will be affecting 

those lanes there on 395 north of Spaghetti Bowl, as well as the work that 

you see going south, where we're replacing the concrete panels that I 

showed earlier.  This contract will be about a million contract to address 

some of the problems with that rail and put in a higher rail that really is a lot 

safer for trucks on that stretch.  Next slide. 

 The Surface Transportation Bill extension was signed by President Obama, 

so it extends the bill through July 31st.  The Highway Trust fund later this 

summer will run into the red unless there's additional funding other than the 

traditional federal gas tax that goes into that federal fuel taxes.  So we'll 

probably be on a series of short-term extensions either through the rest of 

the federal fiscal year or through the end of the year, is the likely scenario.  

But good news is that the Senate, later this month, will be discussing a long-

term bill and we're hearing that they're thinking about a six-year bill for 

Surface Transportation reauthorization.  Obviously, still that major hurdle of 

identifying where the funding will come from.  As I've stated in the past, 

there is a need to increase revenue or to transfer from the General Fund to 

make up the difference between what the federal fuel tax takes in and what 

the states are currently obligated to spend.  Next. 

 Well, Governor, it was described as a historic session and unprecedented.  

And really hats off to you and your folks that had to do a lot of convincing.  

And I, as a resident and a Nevadan, I can say that, on behalf of many 

Nevadans, we appreciate your focus on education.  You told us in the State 

of the State Address what you were going to do and accomplish, if not all of 

it, nearly all of it.  And appreciate the focus on education and increased 

funding and accountability were just the keystones of your agenda.  And I 

think I can speak for all of us to say thank you for the effort and also for 

finishing on time.  It was quite a session and it makes our bills that I'm 

going to go through pale in comparison, but we appreciate the leadership 

that occurred from you and your team in this session. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

8 

 

 The bills that passed, we did get the authority now to work with this Board, 

the Board of Finance and the Treasurer's Office on allowing terms of bond 

repayments up to 30 years from the current 20 years.  And we addressed a 

lot of the concerns from the legislators about this.  Even though we have the 

ability to issue bonds for 20 years, only one of the five series of past series 

of bonds were issued for that term.  So there was concern about that it could 

cost more if you paid more interest over a longer term.  Obviously, that's 

true, but we're very thoughtful and we look to what debt we can carry in that 

highway revenue that we're committing towards prepayment of bonds. 

 AB 43 addressed confidentiality, and I think that it makes it more open and 

transparent as far as the process that we use to select design-builders and 

Construction Managers At Risk, because that is a two-step process typically.  

And the folks that are competing for those types of opportunities want to see 

what their competition proposed, how they won and how they could 

improve their proposal the next time around.  So at the notice of intent to 

award, they have the ability to look into that.  So their competitors, 

proposals and find out what they -- if they want to do a formal challenge or 

if they want to just review it so they can improve it and have more 

transparency in the process. 

 SB 23, just aligned our short-range project reporting from the three years to 

the four year.  It matches the federal reporting requirement for our short-

term and working with the RTCs, the Metropolitan Planning Organizations 

across the state.  So we're all on the same page now with a four-year list.  

SB 324 was an important one that Senator Manendo gave us a placeholder 

bill that he wasn't going to use, and we appreciated that to get enforcement 

authority for illicit discharges.  So polluted water that comes into our right-

of-way on our streets and highways, we can take very quick action.  

Previously, we'd rely on NDEP, Division of Environmental Protection, to do 

the enforcement.  And this is one that that's going to help us in the 

negotiations with the U.S. EPA on the Clean Water Act compliance.  Next 

slide. 

 Those are our four bills.  Now, other bills have passed that affected the 

Department of Transportation; SB 2 initially was the 85-mile per hour speed 

limit proposal from Senator Gustavson that had a lot of discussion at this 

Board over a few months.  It was amended to 80 mile per hour.  It doesn't 

require us to go out there right now or October 1st and change all the signs 

on the interstate.  We'll be very thoughtful on that approach.  We've reached 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

9 

 

out to several other states that have this 80-mile per hour speed limit, so 

Utah, Wyoming, Idaho.  Some of the western states that have the same 

challenges with long stretches where people would want to driver faster and 

they feel that it's safer.  But we want to investigate this and be very 

thoughtful in our approach to this.  But I just wanted to mention that that did 

pass. 

 AB 191 was very important for fuel revenue indexing.  Not only to continue 

in Clark County, but also to -- if the public votes county by county, with the 

exception of Washoe, in November of 2016, to allow this and the County 

Commission enacts it, then a portion of that revenue, which is the state fuel 

tax portion that's indexed, would go to the State Highway Fund.  So it could 

be substantial, particularly in Clark County.  I know that Tina Quigley was 

very pleased with the legislature's consideration and your signing of that 

bill, Governor.  Next slide.  Go ahead. 

 Okay.  Uber was a topic of discussion, and these two bills allowed Uber to 

operate.  And one of the things how it benefits NDOT is that the revenue 

that could be generated out of a service fee attached to the Uber or Lyft, the 

first $5 million of that will go into the State Highway Fund.  So that's an 

additional revenue source for the Highway Fund that was not there previous 

to this session.   

Pedestrian safety zones were an item on SB 144.  So we'll work closely with 

the local public agencies and the RTCs and school districts, because often 

they're related to school zones.  And if there's any state highways that are in 

these pedestrian safety zones, we'll take the appropriate actions for striping 

or signing.  But any bills that improves safety, particularly for pedestrians, 

we're very pleased with, such as SB 245.  It matched the penalties for hit-

and-runs similar to -- increased the penalties, because we had a rash of 

fatalities associated with pedestrians.  Some of those were hit-and-run 

crashes, and we want to make people drive responsibly and act responsibly 

when there is an incident.  Next slide. 

Sandoval: Okay.  Before you move on to that… 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Sandoval: First of all, would you talk a little bit about the additional staff positions that 

were put into the budget for NDOT with regard to the Clean Water Act? 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

10 

 

Malfabon: Yes.  We had worked with Nevada Division of Environmental Protection for 

an organizational chart.  An approach to obtain Clean Water Act compliance 

based on our discussions with the EPA and a draft consent decree, which is 

a list of activities that we have to do.  So it addressed mapping, design 

efforts, construction efforts, maintenance efforts, the permitting that I talked 

about that we needed enforcement authority on, and public communication 

and outreach.  Educating property owners that are adjacent or next to the 

highway that maybe might not be aware of certain activities that they should 

watch out for like spilled motor oil, for instance, on a parking lot. 

 So in concert with our Clean Water Act compliance ramp up of how to 

address those needs, we had a budget amendment for 59 -- I believe it was 

59 positions.  Significant amount of positions in all those areas that I 

mentioned or those activities that we have to conduct and improve upon.  It 

was substantial and we asked for more maintenance positions, because right 

now we put the devices out there to prevent some of the silt from rainfall 

getting into the storm drain system and then discharging into rivers or other 

waterways, the lakes, Lake Tahoe in particular.  So we asked for more 

maintenance positions.  We asked for more maintenance equipment.  Out of 

those 59 positions requested, 42 new positions were approved and the 

legislature directed us to look at some of the vacant positions and 

repurposing positions for this purpose of obtaining Clean Water Act 

compliance. 

 So we are pleased with that budget amendment that went through.  We did 

receive a lot of questions about it and we responded to those questions.  But 

we also received approval to start hiring those, effective July 1st.  So we've 

already started with some of the leadership positions, and an additional 

deputy director position will be hired and work our way through those new 

positions and really improve and address the Clean Water Act compliance 

issues that we're facing as a department. 

Sandoval: Thank you.  So we should, going forward, be okay.  I mean, I can't see a 

reason why we wouldn't be. 

Malfabon: Yeah, I think that it's going to show the U.S. EPA that we mean business.  

The legislature approved that budget amendment after we had taken it 

through the budget office.  And I think that obviously it's going to take some 

effort to fill those positions, but we know what we have to do.  It's just now 

negotiating with the U.S. EPA.  But I think that they'll be pleased with that.  



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

11 

 

That is an enormous amount of positions in all cross-cutting areas of the 

Department, and to have another deputy director to lead this program.  I 

know that Bill Hoffman has been relentless, but it's taken a lot of his time 

from other responsibilities that he has.  But I appreciate Bill Hoffman's 

efforts in working with Environmental and NDEP on this, and your staff, 

Governor.  So I think it puts us in a better footing for success with Clean 

Water Act compliance and the U.S. EPA. 

Sandoval: And then will you chat a little bit about the money that's going to go back 

into the Highway Fund from the GST in the second year of the biennium. 

Malfabon: The GST, a portion of that used to be offset for DMV operations.  And I 

don't know the exact amount, Governor, but it's going to result in more 

money into the Highway Fund for projects.  And that was a key issue that 

was important not only to the Department, obviously, but to our contractors, 

or materials suppliers.  A lot of folks that were concerned about the 

stormwater amendment and the cost of that type of program and 

compliance, their goal was to have more projects out the door, and certainly 

that's our goal too.  We have a lot of needs, but having that addressed is 

going to mean millions of dollars into the Highway Fund for future projects. 

Sandoval: Yeah.  No, and that was money that was otherwise going to the General 

Fund, but is now going to the Highway Fund. 

Malfabon: Right. 

Sandoval: And then, finally, which I want to express my thanks and appreciation to the 

employees of the Nevada Department of Transportation, but to all state 

employees, as part of the budget we eliminated the furloughs and we also 

put a COLA in the budget, as well.  And it was very important to me 

because the state employees have made so many sacrifices, at least during 

my tenure here, and financial ones.  And so, again, I don't know if it gets it 

caught up to exactly where it should be, but at least now no more furloughs 

and we're going to have those COLAs.  We're going to have the step 

increases, as well.  And I just wanted to publically express my thanks to all 

the men and women of NDOT for your hard work, because I see it all the 

time. 

 And an example of that was the earthquake in Las Vegas.  Literally, there 

were people from NDOT on site within minutes.  And with respect to the 

press, there was this big headline, "Earthquake; Bridge Closed."  And so the 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

12 

 

folks from here got there, investigated, inspected, and determined exactly 

the nature of it and put people at ease that the Spaghetti Bowl was okay and 

it was safe.  And people who were coming from out of town could know 

that they could come to Las Vegas and know that it was safe.  But it was 

because of that immediate reaction of the people of this department to get 

out there and get the facts out. 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Sandoval: And so, again, I don't think I say it enough, but for the men and women that 

are out there on the ground and making things happen, I mean a couple of 

years ago with that flooding out there by Mesquite, I mean you could go on 

and on and on.  And so the people of this state are very well-served by the 

employees of this department.  And as I said, it was important for me to get 

that in the budget to at least show that this administration and the legislature 

is very supportive of their efforts. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor, for not only the comments about what our folks have 

reacted to recently with events, but the support for that cost of living 

increase and elimination of furloughs means a lot to employees that have 

been dealing with pay cuts in the past several years, and we really appreciate 

that in the budget. 

 A quick update on USA Parkway.  As we've mentioned, the four 

design-build teams have been shortlisted.  The draft request for proposals 

was issued the end of last month.  And we're going to hold a DBE or 

minority contracting workshop on June 17th, at the Nugget in Sparks.  We're 

trying to attract more women-owned firms and minority-owned firms to the 

program, and this is a good opportunity.  It's a state-funded construction 

project, but we do have the DBE goals on state-funded projects, as well.  

Design-build is a little bit different.  You have to get in very early on these 

teams, and that's one thing that we're trying to make those connections 

between the primes on the design side and construction side that are these 

team members on design-build efforts.  And the final RFP will be issued in 

early August 2015, and we'll have a selection by the end of the year and 

construction will still be on track to be finished by December 2017.  Next 

slide. 

 A lot of other major projects to update you on.  Carson Freeway work 

begins June 15th, next week.  Sorry, I had forgotten to change that slide.  



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

13 

 

That was actually last month, not today.  I-11 Boulder City Bypass Phase 1 

work is underway.  This initial phase for I-11 has a lot to do with submitting 

of the plans, and initial phases is a lot of utility underground work.  So 

you're not going to see a lot of construction work.  You're going to see a lot 

of underground trenching and utility work, initially, while we review the 

contractor's plans on that project. 

 US 95 interchange, the bids were opened and you're going to be considering 

the award of that project later today.  That constructs two of the major ramps 

at that interchange.  This is a multiphase project on U.S. 95.  We've been 

systematically widening U.S. 95 all the way up to Mt. Charleston 

eventually, but we're at that point where we're working at the 215 Beltway, 

the interchange with 95.  Next slide. 

 No recent settlements to report.  We do have a tentative settlement on a 

property owner named Wycoff that was related to the I-15 south 

design-build project.  And so that will be going to the Board of Examiners 

soon.  That was on Warm Springs Road where the parcel was located.  Still 

working on this I-580 Meadowood Interchange construction claim.  Now 

that the legislature is over, I'm getting more involved with this.  And Reid 

Kaiser and I, our assistant director of operations, are going to have a 

meeting later this month with the Meadow Valley president.  And I think 

that there's just a lot of information, a lot of detail to go through.  We do 

have some kind of independent reviews going on right now.  We're waiting 

for that information on the drilled shafts, and we'll be in a better position to 

deal with that claim in later weeks.  Next slide. 

 I wanted to mention that we've hired 56 interns this summer.  It's a great 

opportunity to support not only the local universities here in Nevada, but to 

showcase the Department as a future employer for these young students that 

we want to get more talent.  As we see on a quarterly basis before this 

Board, there is decades of experience going out the door, and we want to 

recruit some bright young talent.  You saw it with the -- last month's kind of 

the messaging on the media campaign, the Safe and Connected that the 

students developed.  That kind of talent is out there.  We want to expose 

them not just to engineering, but all sectors of the Department.  We do a lot 

of things in planning and operations and the districts, so not just the 

engineering sector.  And even in administration, there's many opportunities 

for these young students to gain employment at either the Department of 

Transportation or other state agencies.   



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

14 

 

It gives them an opportunity to work for us, see what it's like and hopefully 

attract them in the future.  There's probably a lot of the interns here today, so 

young faces in the audience.  I'm not going to say that I look old, but 

compared to -- the other thing is that we will be removing the grass.  

Governor, you had an event recently to showcase the attention needed to the 

drought, and people need to conserve water, both at home and at work.  And 

we're going to be xeriscaping the front, eliminating some of the grass that 

uses a lot of water.  We're obviously going to be looking very much into 

detail as far as the districts and all of our facilities and how much water we 

use and how we can do our part as a state agency to lower the use of water 

at our facilities. 

 And the operational audit, we shortlisted two firms that will be interviewed 

very soon.  Those firms are Eide Bailly and Piercy Bowler Taylor & Kern.  

After the interviews are conducted, we'll negotiate a contract and bring that 

to the Board for approval, and also have some discussion about what items 

to tackle first, because there were several items in the scope of work that we 

want to prioritize.  And I think that that concludes the Director's Report, 

Governor.  Ready for any questions. 

Sandoval: Thank you, Mr. Director.  Any questions from Board members? 

Malfabon: The video is ready, would you like to watch it now? 

Sandoval: Oh, yes, let's watch the video for the Virginia City. 

Video: This road, State Route 342, between Silver City and Gold Hill, was closed 

due to a lot of rain and a chronic problem.  The rain occurred in February, 

February 6th and 7th, and it turned out we had to close the road because water 

was just disappearing into the cracks.  The Silver Hill Mine Shaft was a 

chronic problem for over 60 to 80 years.  And essentially it had a number of 

catastrophic failures, the most recent one being in 2005.  And here were are 

in 2015, we had another failure, an imminent and catastrophic failure.  And 

today with the partnership with Comstock Mining, Storey County, the 

residents of Storey County, the residents of Virginia City, Silver City and 

Gold Hill, we were able to open this road up early.  2,000 vehicles use this 

road a day.  It may not seem like a lot when you look at I-80, but it means a 

lot to the community of Virginia City, Silver City, and Gold Hill. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

15 

 

We can appreciate that phase one of this project is not only done, but it's 

done ahead of schedule.  We'd like to thank the Nevada Department of 

Transportation and their staff.   

The project has undertaken unprecedented cooperation of state agencies, 

without whose combined assistance and urgency, it would have taken years 

to complete.  NDOT, Storey County Government and its employees, 

SHIPPO, NDEP, Comstock Historic District Commission, and even the 

office of the Lieutenant Governor.  It was about teamwork, and as the 

Lieutenant Governor has said many times, AmeriCAN, and we did.  Open 

the road. 

Malfabon: And that concludes the Director's Report, Governor. 

Sandoval: All right.  We'll move to Agenda Item No. 2, Public Comment.  Is there any 

member of the public here in Carson City that would like to provide public 

comment to the Board?  Yes, sir. 

Mendiola: For the record, my name is Dave Mendiola, County Administrator, 

Humboldt County.  First of all, I'd like to thank the Board for giving us this 

opportunity to talk.  I don't have much to say, other than I've brought along 

with me an old cowboy from Humboldt County Nevada, Mr. Garley Amos, 

who's our chairman of the Board of Commissioners.  And we'd just like to 

make mention of the I-11 corridor.  And I know you've made your decisions 

up to I-80, but we'd like to be considered for the future as you make 

decisions going farther north.  Potentially, up into Ada County and Idaho.  

So, Mr. Amos, if you'd like to say a few things. 

Amos: Good morning.  Garley Amos, Humboldt County Commissioner, Chairman, 

and a long-life resident of Winnemucca, Nevada.  I concur with 

Mr. Mendiola.  It would be a very beneficial move to have I-11 come 

through Winnemucca and come up through that area.  It's kind of 

economically depressed, and especially if we lost our gold mines, it would 

be pretty hard on a lot of people.  We'd lose a lot of jobs and stuff.  So I 

think that would be an ace in the corner and we would sure appreciate it if 

you would consider us.  Thank you, folks. 

Sandoval: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for being here and taking the time to provide 

that… 

Amos: My pleasure. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

16 

 

Sandoval: …comment.  Yeah. 

Mendiola: Thank you. 

Sandoval: Mr. Mendiola, thank you. 

Amos: And thank you, Tom. 

Quigley: Tina Quigley, General Manager of the Regional Transportation Commission 

of Southern Nevada.  I would like to thank all of you, Governor in 

particular, for your support for AB 191, which for everybody's clarification, 

it was previously in last session we were going to have two ballot questions 

in 2016 to ask the voters whether or not they wanted to continue to tie local 

and federal gas tax to inflation.  That was one question.  And the second 

question was going to be do you want to tie the state portion of gas tax to 

inflation.  It was going to be very confusing for the voters.  So AB 191 

allows us to have one question wherein the county and NDOT will be very 

closely aligned and we will together -- we've come up with a list of very 

high-profile and important projects that would be able to be funded with 

this.  And for NDOT it means over a billion dollars, for local government it 

means over two billion.  So very important and much appreciated. 

 We also are excited to see this new revenue stream, the additional $5 million 

coming into the Highway Fund.  And just as a representative of Southern 

Nevada, we certainly are going to be paying a lot of attention to where that 

money is directed, recognizing the fact that this new type of operation in 

Southern Nevada is going to mean some policy changes, some infrastructure 

changes and some coordination changes with our airport and our resorts.  So 

we will be interested in seeing where that money goes.  Thanks. 

Sandoval: Thank you. Ms. Quigley.  Any other public comment from Carson City?  

Any public comment from Las Vegas? 

Martin: None here, sir. 

Sandoval: Thank you.  We will move to Agenda Item No. 3, May 11, 2015 Board of 

Directors Meeting Minutes.  Have the members had an opportunity to read 

the minutes and are there any changes?  Mr. Controller. 

Knecht: Thank you, Governor.  Two brief items.  One's at Page 29 at the bottom, 

where I spoke inaudibly according to this.  I believe the correct word there 

would be being, "being the local boy."  I should have said may I have that 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

17 

 

one.  But, anyway, the second thing is at Page 32, there's a discussion at that 

point, and this is just for information, about the payment of invoices to the 

law firm.  And I just wanted to let you and everybody else on this Board and 

NDOT know that I took action as a result of that discussion, as I said I 

would, to make sure that the invoices were held.  And I will continue to hold 

them pending any information from this Board and from the Governor's 

Office. 

Sandoval: All right.  Thank you, Mr. Controller.  Any other changes to the minutes?  If 

there are none, the Chair will accept a motion for approval. 

Martin: I have one, sir. 

Sandoval: Oh, I'm sorry, Frank.  Go ahead. 

Martin: It shows me as present.  I was not present last month on the front page. 

Sandoval: You would've gotten a freebie there, Frank.  All right.  So if there's a motion 

to approve the minutes with the amendment that notes that Mr. Martin is not 

present, as well as the additional on Page 29 by Controller Knecht to delete 

the inaudible and to insert "being," B-E-I-N-G. 

Knecht: So moved, Governor. 

Sandoval: Controller has moved for approval.  Is there a second? 

Savage: Second. 

Martin: Second. 

Sandoval: Second by Mr. Savage.  Any questions or discussion on the motion?  All in 

favor please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Fransway: I will abstain, Governor.  I was not here. 

Sandoval: So motion passes, and if you would mark Mr. Fransway as abstaining.  We 

will move on to Agenda Item No. 4, Approval of Contracts over $5 million.  

Good morning, sir. 

Nellis: Good morning, Governor and members of the Board.  For the record, Robert 

Nellis, Assistant Director for Administration.  There is one construction 

contract under Agenda Item No. 4, Attachment A found on Page 3 of 11 for 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

18 

 

the Board's consideration.  The project is located in Clark County to 

construct ramps and a collector road for the U.S. 95/215 Interchange and to 

construct a reinforced box storm drain with all the pertinences.  There were 

three bids and the Director recommends award to Las Vegas Paving 

Corporation in the amount of $39,200,000.  The anticipated proceed date is 

July 2015, and estimated completion is by spring 2017.  And I'd just like to 

note, Governor, for the record that Las Vegas Paving is already working 

near the project site at U.S. 95 from Ann Road to Durango, and this 

substantially reduces the mobilization costs. 

Sandoval: Thank you, Mr. Nellis.  Does that complete your presentation? 

Nellis: Yes, sir, it does. 

Sandoval: So that would explain the gap between the successful bidder and the number 

two bidder? 

Nellis: That's correct, sir. 

Sandoval: Any questions from Board members?  If there are none, the Chair will 

accept a motion for approval of the contract described in Agenda Item No. 4 

which Las Vegas Paving Corporation. 

Fransway: Governor, I move for approval of Contract 3583. 

Sandoval: And just fair warning, I'm going to give Mr. Fransway every motion this 

meeting.  So Mr. Fransway has moved for approval.  Is there a second? 

Martin: Second. 

Sandoval: Second by Member Martin.  So we have a motion and a second for 

approval.  Any questions or discussion on the motion?  All in favor please 

say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed no?  Motion passes unanimously.  We'll move on to Agenda Item 

No. 5, Approval of Agreements Over $300,000.  Mr. Nellis. 

Nellis: Thank you, Governor.  There are five agreements under Attachment A 

found on Pages 3 of 29 for the Board's consideration.  The first is with 

Collins Engineering, Inc. in the amount of $881,384.16.  This is for up to 68 

annual routine underwater bridge inspection services.  And just want to note 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

19 

 

for the Board that this is federally mandated and federally funded.  And as 

the Director pointed out earlier, Nevada's bridges are ranked number one.  

And even though these are under water, I just want to note also for the 

record this is a four-year contract, so hopefully we'll get rain, Governor. 

Sandoval: I was going to ask how many bridges have water beneath them right now.  

But I understand. 

Nellis: Ongoing, yes, sir. 

Sandoval: Yeah.  Mm-hmm. 

Nellis: And then also Line Item No. 2 with TSK, that's in the amount of $300,000.  

This is for on-call architectural design services for various department 

buildings, as needed, including design remodels, additions, replacement or 

repairs of small buildings or building systems.  Then, finally, members of 

the Board, Items 3 through 5, in the amount of $300,000 each are for on-call 

building inspection material and testing services for all department facilities, 

as needed.  Services are necessary to ensure the Department's building 

construction projects adhere to the International Building Code, as well as 

the National Electric Code compliance.  And that concludes Agenda Item 

No. 5.  Are there any questions for the Department regarding these items? 

Sandoval: Questions?  Member Savage, then the Controller. 

Savage: Thank you, Governor.  A couple questions, Mr. Nellis.  Line Item No. 1, is 

Collins Engineers, Inc. a Nevada company? 

Nellis: It appears we don't know.  (Inaudible). 

Savage: Okay.  If you could check into that and let me know, I'd appreciate it.  Line 

Items No. 3, 4 and 5, what are the pool of engineering businesses that 

NDOT pulls from for services of this nature? 

Nellis: Do you want to answer? 

Kaiser: Governor, Transportation Board, I'm not sure.  I'm wondering if Anita -- 

Anita Bush, our Chief Maintenance and Asset and Management Engineer 

could probably give you a little better answer than I could. 

Savage: And the other thing Mr. Kaiser and Governor, excuse me, we can also take 

this to the CWG meeting after this meeting to answer some of these 

questions, if you'd like to, as well. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

20 

 

Kaiser: Okay. 

Savage: Because I'm also concerned -- or not concerned, but a question would be 

what firms had the agreements during the years of '09 through '13. 

Kaiser: Okay. 

Savage: So I'm just making sure that we're fair and equitable. 

Bush: Governor, members of the Board, Anita Bush, Chief Maintenance and Asset 

and Management Engineer.  We put out an RFP, the Request for Proposals, 

when we advertised this contract, and we had like 12 proposals. 

Savage: Twelve? 

Bush: And it was competitive, so we decided to contract with the three firms and 

how it works is for each task we just go down on the list.  So we make sure 

that the work is distributed evenly.  And all the civil engineering firms who 

do material testing, they can propose for the RFP.  So it was a competitive 

process and we just went with the top three firms. 

Savage: Okay.  Thank you, Ms. Bush.  And as I mentioned, Governor, I think we 

will take this to the other Construction Working Group and talk more about 

the consultant assessment and how it's reviewed.  So I appreciate it.  Thank 

you, Governor. 

Bush: Thank you. 

Malfabon: And in response, Governor, to the question.  Collins Engineers has a 

regional office in Las Vegas.  They're a national firm, though. 

Sandoval: Mr. Controller. 

Knecht: Thank you, Governor.  And looking at Page 3, Mr. Nellis, Items 2 through 5 

all have bid amounts of $300,000.  And when I saw that, initially my 

thought was the event in the movie, "Casino," where the guy hit the big 

jackpot three times in a row and Robert De Niro's character said, "That can't 

happen."  This didn't happen as a matter of chance, I presume.  I just want to 

clarify what you're doing, and I think this is a good idea if I'm right, is 

you're making sure that these contracts are at a stated amount that triggers 

review by this Board so that it doesn't fly under the radar and you'll, of 

course, manage them very frugally to make sure we don't spend anything 

more than needed, but that you've got the Board's review and authority and 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

21 

 

it's for the time periods specified, so that these people are on call and you 

can operate efficiently without having to go out for new bids and contracts 

and review by this Board every year or six months or whatever.  Do I glean 

correctly that that's what's going on? 

Nellis: Yes, Mr. Controller.  For the record, Robert Nellis, Assistant Director for 

Administration.  That's correct.  The reason they're on the approval items is 

specifically so we can get the Board's approval, and these are maximum 

amounts.  We have these on-call agreements, so we may go up to those 

amounts.  We may not, but I'd be more concerned if they came in at 

$299,999. 

Knecht: I would too.  And I just want to say to NDOT administration and 

management, I think that's a good practice.  We run into lots of problems in 

state government where state government can't act timely and efficiently, 

and this is certainly one way to put us in a position so that we can and so 

that we're not behind the eight ball when something's needed.  And on that 

first contract, by the way, if you get out there right now you can probably 

inspect all those with no water under them. 

Sandoval: Any other questions or comments with regard to Agenda Item No. 5?  If 

there are none, the Chair will accept a motion to approve Contracts 1 

through 5 as described Agenda Item No. 5. 

Fransway: So moved, Governor. 

Sandoval: Member Fransway has moved for approval.  Is there a second? 

Knecht: Second. 

Sandoval: Second by the Controller.  Any questions or discussion?  All in favor, please 

say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed no?  Motion passes unanimously.  We'll move on to Agenda Item 

No. 6, Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements.  Mr. Nellis. 

Nellis; Thank you, Governor.  Again for the record, Robert Nellis.  There are two 

attachments that can be found under Agenda Item No. 6 for the Board's 

information.  And beginning with Attachment A, there are four contracts on 

Pages 4 and 5 of 19 for the Board's information.  The first is located in 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

22 

 

Interstate 15 for Project NEON; demolition, asbestos, and hazardous 

material abatement for 11 parcels.  There were four bids, and just to note for 

the Board's information, there is a calculation error on the fourth bid in 

CGI's bid.  That's why that amount is so much larger than the others.  And 

the Director awarded the contract to Baldwin Development, LLC, in the 

amount of $676,676. 

 The second contract is on U.S. 50 in Silver Springs, Lyon County to 

construct a fence with cattle guards.  There were four bids on this one, and 

the Director awarded the contract to Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc., in the 

amount of $689,007.  The third contract on U.S. 50 is in the Carson City 

Clear Creek watershed to construct multiple storm drains, drop inlets, trench 

drains, slope flattening, grading concrete curb and gutters, and channel 

work.  There were five bids and the Director awarded the contract to MKD 

Construction, in the amount of $1,160,000.   

And, finally, Board members, Item No. 4 is a resurfacing project located on 

SR 158, Deer Creek Road, in Clark County.  There were two bids and the 

Director awarded the contract to Las Vegas Paving Corporation in the 

amount of $2,118,000.  And I'd just like to make a correction for the record 

that contract was awarded on May 4th rather than April 8th as stated in your 

packets.  And, Governor, that concludes these items.  Does the Board have 

any questions for the Department? 

Sandoval: Questions from Board members?  Mr. Controller. 

Knecht: Thank you, Governor.  And I just want to turn to Item 1 at Page 4.  The bids 

and the estimates kind of prompt a wow question.  The three bids are 

significantly below the engineer's estimate, which is always, I guess, a good 

thing in its own way.  Then there's one that's only 6 times the engineer's 

estimate and 10 times the others.  Can you give us any insight on the 

engineer's estimate and the validity of the bids and what's going on there?  

In particular, were the specs clear to everybody?  Because I worry that when 

somebody comes in with a bid 10 times what everybody else does that there 

may have been something unclear in the specs. 

Nellis: And, Mr. Controller, as our tradition, we'll have our chief engineer answer 

that question. 

Terry: John Terry, Assistant Director for Engineering.  And actually we were kind 

of surprised by the bid.  The one is an error.  I think there's a decimal error 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

23 

 

in that one.  In the other estimates, we are a little bit surprised in that this 

is -- is the third or the fourth demolition contract on NEON?  So are they 

finding that the work isn't as hard as they go on and they're doing it more 

economically or are we not adjusting our estimates down appropriately?  

But we recommended award.  The bids were reasonable.  The companies are 

doing a reasonable and they are very close to each other and we're looking 

closer at our engineer's estimates for these demolition contracts.  But I guess 

the good news is we're finding these demolition contracts are going down 

the more we release them and we have another one yet to go. 

Knecht: Just one more comment on that, Governor.  And thank you, John, that's a 

helpful explanation.  I saw the asterisk there and then I didn't find that at the 

bottom of the page, but it's at the bottom of the next page so, okay, typo.  

That's a pretty expensive typo, by the way, for somebody but not us.  I'm 

comforted also by the fact that the two low bids are within about 5 percent 

of each other.  And so there's a kind of a reinforcement there, and let's just 

hope that this trend continues.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: Please proceed, Mr. Nellis. 

Nellis: Thank you.  Governor and members of the Board, again, for the record, 

Robert Nellis.  There are 79 executed agreements that can be found under 

Attachment B on Pages 11 through 19 for the Board's information.  And 

Items 1 through 5 are cooperative and interlocal agreements.  6 through 23 

are acquisitions and an appraisal.  24 through 32 are facility agreements and 

leases.  33 through 52 are for right-of-way access.  And, finally, Items 54 

through 79 are service provider agreements.  And just a few notes for the 

record, Item No. 53 was actually misordered between Items No. 67 and 68 

on Page 17.  So there are still 79 items, it was just placed out of order.  And 

then Item No. 77 on Page 18, the amendment date is actually 5/11/15, not 

9/26/1900.  So I didn't want the Board to think we were amending 

agreements from that far back.  And that's it.  Any questions from the Board, 

Governor? 

Sandoval: Thank you, Mr. Nellis.  A couple of questions from me on 20 through 23.  I 

see the end date is 2025. 

Hoffman: I can take that question. 

Sandoval: For lease agreements and… 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

24 

 

Hoffman: So, Governor, for the record, Bill Hoffman, Deputy Director at NDOT.  

These hold vacant leases, the actual expiration date isn't as important as the 

work that goes on to close out the agreements.  When we close escrow, 

that's what actually ends the agreement itself.  And there was one situation 

where we held the expiration date too close, so we didn't give ourselves 

enough time to do that work, and it really caused a lot of inefficiencies and a 

lot of extra time and resources.  So what we've done in this case to be very 

conservative is kick the date out, well out in advance.  Ten years is a lot, but 

we're working on dialing that end date back somewhere in the two- to three-

year range.  So we're looking at that, evaluating that, but we did notice that 

and we'll work to drill down into the details and get that agreement 

expiration date as close as we can to what we think is accurate, so… 

Sandoval: No, and thank you.  I just wanted to make sure that you didn't know 

something that we didn't know. 

Hoffman: No. 

Sandoval: All right.  Move to Contract 24 and just a question on that is it goes through 

2020, but the contract is for preliminary engineering. 

Malfabon: I can take that one, Governor.  So the gas company has certain rights for 

their major gas line in that that actually is in the same area as that U.S. 95 

interchange project at the beltway.  Eventually, this gas line has to be 

relocated for the future phases of that interchange contract.  Not the current 

one that you approved, but since they have certain rights we're paying them 

for the design for the future relocation. 

Sandoval: And then moving to Contract 60 for the site cleanup.  It just seems a little 

high, $240,000. 

Malfabon: And I'll take that one, too, Governor.  We pay for the services rendered, but 

often along highways, unfortunately, there's encampments by people that are 

homeless, and it involves hazardous waste.  Obviously, they're using the 

site.  And also sometimes drug paraphernalia that we have to be cautious 

around so that they won't get stuck with a needle and such.  But the cost is 

significant, but we've been doing this service with various environmental 

cleanup firms, and we feel that the costs are reasonable. 

Sandoval: All right.  That's all I have.  Questions from other Board members?  Member 

Fransway. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

25 

 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  And, likewise, I had a question on Item 60.  Seems 

to me like that's somehow a misappropriation of fuel tax funds in order to 

clean up after a homeless site.  I suggest that there must be a level of 

enforcement on our part or on law enforcement's part to eliminate what I 

consider a trespass.  This Board and the funds that come are paid for by the 

traveling public in the form of gas taxes are not meant for social issues.  So I 

suggest that somehow in the future there be a mechanism that NDOT can 

avoid these types of -- what I feel is (inaudible). 

Malfabon: And in response, Member Fransway, we do sign our facilities "No 

Trespassing."  Unfortunately, that doesn't keep folks from camping out next 

to the highway.  We also do some things not only with larger rocks so that 

it's not comfortable to camp out at that location, but also make it look nicer 

esthetically.  And then we also have been talking to the engineering side of 

the Department to design things so that they're not going to attract people.  

It's not a nice spot to -- for instance, under a bridge.  We don't have a level 

platform under a bridge that would attract someone camping out right there 

under a bridge in the shade. 

 So we also work with law enforcement in Southern Nevada.  We coordinate 

the cleanup efforts.  And I believe this is proper use of State Highway Fund 

money to conduct maintenance activities.  It's basically cleanup along the 

highway similar to what we do with our litter and trash control along the 

freeways.  It's just that there's more hazardous materials there to deal with 

due to encampments.  And when law enforcement is involved, we give 

proper notice to the people that are camping out there.  They have personal 

effects that they take away and then we come in there with maintenance, 

clean it up.  And often what happens is, unfortunately, they come back to 

those areas.  Law enforcement has a lot of responsibilities.  I don't know if 

Mary Martini, our district engineer, has anything to add to that.  But it's 

been a challenge, especially in Las Vegas. 

Martini: This is Mary Martini.  I'm district engineer for District 1, Southern Nevada.  

Essentially, the areas in question are usually around our older sections 

through the middle part of Las Vegas; D Street, F Street, H Street.  And we 

recognize that it is an expenditure of funds, and this has been going on for 

some time, so it doesn't look like it's a part of the transportation effort.  

However, we have some pretty significant water quality issues because the 

reality is, is that we've got hundreds of homeless people and they're 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

26 

 

transient, which means that they camp and then they move on and then they 

come back, regardless of the efforts that we take. 

 While we're involved with the social services and we're involved with law 

enforcement, they are there.  There is a lot of human waste that accumulates.  

Sometimes they can fill up a box culvert half, three-quarters of the way full 

in between cleanings.  And we usually get the hazmat contracts out about 

once every six to eight weeks.  I'd be happy to give you a tour of the realities 

of the underside of Las Vegas, but if we did not expend this money we 

would be in serious violation of water quality, health standards, and just the 

neighborhoods of what occurs next to people's homes, because the homeless 

are living in those areas.  Thank you. 

Dyson: And Thor Dyson, District 2 Engineer.  We experience similar things, 

particularly on the I-80 corridor through downtown Reno.  Everything that 

District Engineer Mary Martini said is equivalent to us, it's just in a lesser 

scale.  I do want to add that they do cause a lot of problems, particularly 

with our irrigation lines.  They're looking for water to drink.  The economy, 

when it tanked and got a lot worse back in 2007 and 2008, we certainly saw 

an increase in the homeless activity.  And we have to follow certain 

regulations and we have to be very careful when we start moving people's 

encampment.  And we want to make sure that we follow all the NRSs, and 

our legal division has helped us in the past on how to address homeless 

camps, homeless situations under all our structures.  And it's a tough deal, 

but it does need to be addressed for water quality and everything that 

Ms. Martini stated.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: Other questions? 

Savage: Yes. 

Sandoval: We have  Member Savage, then the Controller. 

Savage: Thank you, Governor.  And, again, 59; I think the dollars are excessive.  Not 

59, I'm sorry, 60.  60 on the homeless camp cleanup.  I feel it's excessive.  I 

understand the reasoning, but the whole equation regarding transportation 

and safety and homeless, it doesn't add up.  So I think we really have to keep 

our finger on this, and I think with the additional staff with the Clean Water 

Act and the opportunity that we have jurisdiction in these areas, I think we 

can utilize, because it is a safety issue.  When you tie the two together, it 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

27 

 

doesn't make sense.  And I think the dollars are high, but as long as we're on 

top of it I've got complete confidence in the staff and the administration. 

 The second item I have, Governor, would be Item 59, the TIGER Grant 

dollars were CH2M Hill again seemed excessive to me for just under a 

three-month period for $80,000.  And if someone could explain that to me, I 

would appreciate it. 

Nellis: For the record, Robert Nellis.  I don't know if I can explain the $80,000, but 

I thought maybe putting in perspective the amount of money that we're 

going after might help.  It's a $17 million grant and applying for these grants 

takes a lot of time and effort to go into it, so that the ratio itself is a good 

ratio, if that helps. 

Savage: Well, the ratio, but for two months' worth of work for 80 grand.  That ratio 

is the one that bothers me.  I  understand the $17 million and I know a lot of 

people that write grants, but I just want to make sure that we're running it as 

tight as we can to ensure that every dollar needed on Project NEON can be 

used towards the construction or the right-of-way.  And it just seemed high 

to me.  So I would like the Department to ensure that the dollars used for 

that TIGER Grant exercise of a little over two months be reviewed.  I'd 

appreciate that. 

 And lastly, Governor, Items 77 and 78.  Mr. Nellis, you spoke on that 

earlier.  I know it was a timeline extension.  Are there no dollars associated 

with that extension of time? 

Nellis: I don't believe there are, no, sir. 

Savage: No dollars? 

Nellis: No dollars. 

Savage: That's appreciated.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: Mr. Controller. 

Knecht: Thank you, Governor.  And I'd like to stay on the same page at Item 76.  We 

all seem to have our triggers based on our personal experience.  And as 

someone who's testified as an expert witness many, many times, these jump 

off the page at me.  So my question is with 75 and 76, we've got basically 

on-call survey and expert witness and related services, and they're running 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

28 

 

from -- I think they started back in May of 2013, and running more than 

two-and-a-half years and up to three-and-a-half years in the second case, 

No. 76.  I presume this is done on a bid basis with a list of bidders; am I 

right, at the start there? 

Gallagher: For the record, Dennis Gallagher, Counsel to the Board.  Generally, the 

firms are selected based upon their expertise.  I'll point out to the Board on 

Item 75, that particular matter has been settled and the settlement of which 

has previously been approved by the Board of Examiners.  This was just 

catching up with that settlement.  Item 76, this is the last remaining parcel 

that the Department is dealing with in connection with the Boulder City 

Bypass.  Very complicated, given the nature of the land out there and this 

particular individual's very unique business.  So this particular firm was 

engaged because of their expertise engineering-wise to help with project 

design to see if there were any alternatives that we could use less of the 

property owner's land for this project. 

Knecht: So what you're telling me, Mr. Gallagher, in Item 76 which was really the 

one of concern, is that this wasn't really a commodity-type service, but was 

a very specific expertise that this contractor had, and so we didn't go to bid 

and we don't have to worry here about three-and-a-half years being fair to 

other potential bidders; that sort of thing, because this is a very unusual, 

perhaps unique situation. 

Gallagher: The property itself, Board member, is very, very unique and this firm was 

selected because of, if you'll pardon the expression, some of their 

out-of-the-box way of looking at traditional engineering questions.  And 

they've delivered in the past on a number of other property acquisitions 

where they've come in with new ideas, new concepts that have really saved 

the state a significant amount of money. 

Knecht: Those are my kind of folks.  Thank you, Mr. Gallagher.  Thank you, 

Governor. 

Sandoval: Other questions from Board members? 

Fransway: Governor? 

Sandoval: Member Fransway. 

Fransway: I had one other and I forgot to mention it when I had the floor.  Item 13 

through 22, these are expenditures to hold properties vacant.  My question is 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

29 

 

how long are we holding these properties vacant?  And I assume it's related 

to NEON.  But I added them up and it's around $1 million. 

Malfabon: I can respond to that. 

Fransway: So my question is how long? 

Malfabon: So as Deputy Director Hoffman mentioned, it's until we actually acquire the 

property.  What we want to avoid is a revolving door of people leasing 

space.  We just relocate somebody and then someone else moves in, then we 

get to start the process over.  So it helps us to pay the property owner, 

because they're not getting the revenue of leasing the property, but it also 

saves us money in avoiding future relocation costs for another person that 

moves in. 

Fransway: Okay.  So is there a time frame then? 

Malfabon: Typically, it's associated based on the parcel, but when we acquire the 

property, basically when escrow closes, then we don't have to pay that 

anymore.  So since it varies by parcel on the acquisition schedule, but it can 

be from months to, in some cases, over a year depending on the parcel on 

Project NEON, because there's over -- well, dozens of parcels still to acquire 

on a certain schedule. 

Fransway: Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Director.  Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: Any other questions?  Mr. Nellis, does that complete your presentation? 

Nellis: Yes, sir, it does. 

Sandoval: Okay. 

Nellis: Thank you. 

Sandoval: Thank you very much.  We will move to Agenda Item No. 7, which is a 

Resolution of Abandonment. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  This Resolution of Abandonment is for a parcel next 

to I-15.  Pardon me while I catch up here.  The Surplus Property Committee 

reviewed that and we have an easement.  So we don't have the property in 

fee, but it's an easement interest, so what we do here is abandon our 

easement interest.  And the other thing to add to this, this ramp that you see 

on Attachment 1 is no longer going to be necessary for access to I-15 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

30 

 

Northbound once Project NEON is built.  So that's the other reason that we 

don't need it in the future.  This is right by the outlet mall in Las Vegas by 

the Spaghetti Bowl.  And we worked with Federal Highway Administration 

on this request and they found it be acceptable to work with the owner of the 

outlet mall, too, on this encroachment and abandonment of the easement. 

Sandoval: Thank you, Mr. Director.  My only question is, is that easement -- or I'll put 

it this way.  Does that easement not have any value? 

Malfabon: Since we don't own it, it doesn't have any value. 

Sandoval: All right.  Other questions from Board members?  If there are none, the 

Chair will accept a motion to approve the Resolution of Abandonment as 

described in Agenda Item No. 7. 

Fransway: Governor… 

Martin: So moved. 

Fransway: …I assume that the recipient of this abandonment will be Las Vegas? 

Malfabon: The recipient is the underlying fee owner, which I believe is the owner of 

that outlet mall. 

Sandoval: Which would be Simon Chelsea, correct? 

Malfabon: Yes.  Yes. 

Fransway: Simon Chelsea? 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Fransway: Okay.  Move to approve. 

Sandoval: Member Fransway has moved to approve the Resolution of Abandonment as 

described in Agenda Item No. 7.  Member Martin has seconded the motion.  

Any questions or discussion?  Hearing none, all in favor please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed no?  The motion passes.  We'll move to Agenda Item No. 8, 

Resolution of Relinquishment. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

31 

 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  How many of us know where Deeth, Nevada is?  It's 

actually in Elko County.  And we had this property originally back in 1937, 

quitclaimed it to Division of State Lands to be used as a fire station.  And 

recently, last December, they quitclaimed it back to us and the Elko County 

Board of Commissioners passed a resolution to continue using it as a local 

fire station, I believe it is. 

Sandoval: Anything else, Mr. Director? 

Malfabon: No, that's it. 

Sandoval: And if my memory serves me right, Deeth is where Governor Russell taught 

school in a one-room schoolhouse.  So there is some history there.  But 

same question for this item, is there any value to this? 

Malfabon: No, since we had -- maybe I could ask someone from Right-of-Way to 

address that.  But we felt that since it was being used for that purpose, to 

continue to use for the purpose, really the value is to the community to it 

continue being used as that purpose, for public use. 

Borelli: Ruth Borelli, for the record, Deputy Chief Right-of-Way Agent.  Director 

Malfabon is correct.  It's going to be continued to be used for a public 

purpose, so therefore we don't sell it.  We just relinquish it.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: No, and I'm sure the folks out in Elko County are very appreciative. 

Borelli: Yeah, I'm sure they are. 

Sandoval: All right.  Questions from Board members?  If there are none, the Chair will 

accept a motion to approve the Resolution of Relinquishment as described in 

Agenda Item No. 8. 

Fransway: So moved, Governor. 

Sandoval: Member Fransway has moved for approval.  Is there a second? 

Savage: Second. 

Sandoval: Second by Member Savage.  Any questions or discussion on the motion?  

Hearing none, all in favor say aye. 

Group: Aye. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

32 

 

Sandoval: Opposed no?  Motion passes unanimously.  We will move on to Agenda 

Item No. 9, which is the Acceptance of Amendments and Administrative 

Modifications to the 2015-2018 STIP. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  Coy Peacock from our Multimodal Planning Group 

is going to present this item.  It's the regular update for STIP, Statewide 

Transportation Improvement Program modifications.  Coy. 

Peacock: Good morning, Governor, members of the Board.  It's my pleasure to 

present to you the changes to the fiscal year 2015 Statewide Transportation 

Improvement Program or better known as the STIP.  These changes were 

made between March and June of this fiscal year, and they were made to 

ensure the obligation of all the federal funds by the end of the federal fiscal 

year, which is September 30th.  These changes have been approved by the 

Governor's designee, which is the Director of the Department of 

Transportation, Mr. Rudy Malfabon, and also approved by FHWA. 

 Amendments are triggered when there's a significant change to the design or 

scope of any project, when recently a significant project is either added or 

deleted or there is a significant change of over $5 million or greater than 20 

percent.  The administrative modifications are triggered when there's a 

funding category that has changed, when there is a change less than 20 

percent or less than $5 million where a project has been moved between 

federal fiscal years.  I'd be more than happy to answer any questions at this 

time. 

Sandoval: Thank you.  Questions from Board members?  Well, the materials were 

pretty clear and great job.  Although that you've approved it, Mr. Director, it 

still requires action on behalf of this Board to approve it, as well, because it 

is marked as an action item. 

Malfabon: It's already been approved, so it's basically acceptance of this information by 

the Board.  And I wanted to note that as we move to the electronic STIP 

document, you'll get clearer information about where the old funding table 

was and the new funding table for projects, so at least it identifies those 

funding sources and how the money moves around.  Just as Coy mentioned, 

our goal as well as the Metropolitan Planning Organizations, the RTC's goal 

is to use every dime of federal funds.  So this is part of that process. 

Sandoval: All right.  Then the Chair will accept a motion to accept the amendments 

and administrative modifications to the 2015-2018 STIP. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

33 

 

Fransway: So, Governor, is this a ratification? 

Sandoval: It's an acceptance. 

Fransway: Okay.  All right, Governor, I will move for the acceptance of administrative 

amendments and modifications to the STIP as described in Item 9. 

Knecht: Second. 

Sandoval: Thank you, Mr. Fransway.  Mr. Fransway has moved.  The Controller has 

seconded the motion.  Any questions or discussion?  All in favor say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed no?  Motion passes.  We'll move on -- thank you. 

Peacock: Thank you. 

Sandoval: We will move on to Agenda Item No. 10, which is Receiving a Briefing on 

Drafts Southern Nevada HOV Plan. 

Malfabon: And John Terry, our Assistant Director of Engineering and Chief Engineer, 

will present this item. 

Terry: Okay.  So trying this new presentation program, so please bear with me.  We 

made this previous presentation to this Board, and I know we've got a few 

new members, in April of 2014, about the Southern Nevada HOV plan.  So 

quickly tell you what the attempt was to do here and now to tell you that the 

plan is finalized. 

 2007, we did the Southern Nevada HOV plan.  We recently hired Jacobs 

Engineering to update that plan.  The major reasons why we updated that 

plan; the modeling that was done in the 2007 plan was based upon the 2030 

regional transportation model for Southern Nevada, which at that time did 

not include the mode choice.  Mode choice being the model includes transit 

and people using HOVs, et cetera.  We did have access back then to the 

mode choice model, because Southern Nevada was updating their transit 

plan, and we utilized it.  Now that they have updated the 2035 model to use 

the mode choice element, we updated our HOV plan to that and to see how 

it affected our overall plan moving forward.  We wanted to evaluate the 

direct connector locations, which were pretty preliminary in the 2007 study, 

and we wanted to make some operational recommendations because Project 

NEON, of course, is a big part of the update to the regional plan, as you'll 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

34 

 

see as we move through this presentation.  And we needed to get out to the 

public on operational recommendations.  Next, please. 

 This is the current situation, for good or bad.  We have express lanes on I-15 

that extend from about Silverado Ranch to Sahara going north, and we have 

HOV lanes that were built as part of the U.S. 95 project that currently 

extend from about Rancho north to about Ann Road.  Next please. 

 The current U.S. 95, of course, is HOV lanes and I-15 are express lanes.  

With NEON, we will convert two express lanes to one general purpose lane 

and one HOV lane, creating what we are going to call, moving forward, the 

near-term HOV system.  This HOV system that will be in place in 2018 with 

the completion of Project NEON.  We'll go south from Silverado Ranch on 

I-15 North to Elkhorn Road on U.S. 95, as well as out Summerlin Parkway 

to about Buffalo Drive.  Next please. 

 So just show graphically what we're doing, I would call this from the stretch 

from about Sahara down to Silverado Ranch.  There's not always four 

general-purpose lanes.  There's aux lanes, et cetera.  But in general, we're 

going from two express lanes and three general-purpose lanes to one HOV 

lane and four general-purpose lanes.  Again, there's other things happening.  

There's CD roads, et cetera, but the general section through there.  Next 

please. 

 And so this is the proposed near-term system.  I will say it's very close to the 

proposed near-term system that was in the 2007 plan.  The limits on I-15 are 

a little bit different and it goes further north on U.S. 95, but it is pretty close 

to the system that was recommended in the 2007 plan.  And I will say the 

2007 plan essentially created NEON as we see it today.  In other words, it 

recommended the HOV connector from U.S. 95 to I-15 that is the big part of 

NEON today.  So this is what we're proposing will be open in 2018, an 

HOV lane with one lane in each direction from Silverado north to north of 

the 215 Interchange up there at Ann Road -- or at Elkhorn, I'm sorry.  And 

direct connect ramps, those are the purple dots at Elkhorn, as well as the 

HOV gateway that's part of the NEON project, with a direct connector, the 

current one that exists at Summerlin Parkway with the one that's being 

added from 95 to 15 as a part of NEON.  Next please. 

 So, of course, the HOV flyovers are a big deal.  This one cost us $26 million 

and we thought that was a pretty good bid on that.  And the one on NEON is 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

35 

 

going to cost us way more than that.  And we're going to talk about some 

others that are proposed as a part of the long-range plan.  So these HOV 

flyovers that go from system to system are expensive parts of our 

infrastructure.  Next please. 

 So this is the proposed long-term system.  You may say what's the 

long-term.  2025 and beyond, we think, and it depends on funding and a lot 

of other things.  But this is essentially what we're talking about doing for the 

most part to our freeway systems in Southern Nevada for the next 15 years.  

That's why this study is important.  Most of our projects that we do on an 

urban system will include HOV of some element.  Again, the limits are a 

little bit different than was in the first study, but not significantly different.  

HOV lanes on 515, good portions of 215, and kind of hard to see in there, 

but there's two lanes each direction on both 95 and I-15.  As when this 

system builds up, we think those will be over capacity for a single HOV lane 

and would have to be two.  It also shows a lot more of the direct access 

ramps, as well as additional system-to-system interchange at the 215 

Interchange.  Next please. 

 Okay.  In red are the ones that are being built as part of NEON, and the blue 

are other ramps that are proposed as part of this system on I-15.  So we have 

the HOV gateway built as part of NEON.  They're still talking about direct 

connector ramps at Blue Diamond, Hacienda, Harmon and/or Meade are in 

play for the long-range system, as well as proposed connectors at I-15 North 

and 215.  So the system gets expanded quite a bit in a future system, but the 

red ones are being built as a part of NEON.  Next please. 

 When we talk about direct connector ramps, that's an example of a picture of 

them.  On U.S. 95 then we've got some proposed at Maryland Parkway, 

Smoke Ranch and Elkhorn.  And Elkhorn, we're currently working with the 

City of Las Vegas to get that added pretty soon here, as well as additionals 

at the airport connector and Sunset.  So this is one example.  Going 

underneath would be another example of a direct connector.  In other words, 

a connector that gets you from an HOV system to an arterial.  Next please. 

 And I'm going to spend some time on this slide.  This is part of what we've 

had extensive public involvement.  We've had agency outreach.  We've had 

public outreach.  We've had work sessions.  And a lot of it is emphasized 

what are the operational recommendations of the HOV system.  So 

minimum occupancy, two plus.  Most HOV systems in the United States are 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

36 

 

two plus occupancy.  There are a few that are a three plus, but most of those 

started as two plus, got over capacity and, therefore, they converted them to 

three plus.   

Hours of operation; we originally opened our HOV lanes at 24 hours.  We 

converted them to time of day. The recommendation of this study, for 

various reasons that I can get into, is to convert it, when NEON opens, to 24 

hours a day, 7 days a week.  I would say the main reasons are we have a 

very extended peak period that would be quite a bit in period anyway.  And 

we're going to significant flyover bridges and, we'll talk about it later, 

limited access in and out.  And we think both the enforcement and the 

operations of the system are more consistent with a 24-hour a day operation. 

 And, frankly, the users of our system, of course, are from Las Vegas, but the 

nearest metropolitan area, which is the largest HOV system in the nation, is 

Southern California, and that's how theirs operates.  And I can answer your 

questions on that.  Trucks more than two axels are not eligible.  Towing a 

trailer, you're not eligible to use an HOV lane, similar to today.  Motorcycle 

is eligible, similar to today.  Emergency vehicles are able to use it 

responding to an emergency, even if they only have one person in it, which 

is rare.  Usually, they have two anyway.  Public transit buses are eligible, of 

course, to use it.  A big part of our HOV system is to allow transit in it, and 

we've worked with the RTC and they are running express buses in our HOV 

system, and they fully intend to expand that system as we expand ours.  But 

also a dead-heading bus can use the HOV system with just a driver if it 

helps him keep on schedule to run his route to dead-head to the beginning of 

his -- or the end of his route. 

 The other one is the single-occupant low emission and energy efficient 

vehicles.  We currently have NRS that allows us, the Department of 

Transportation, to allow energy-efficient vehicles into our HOV system.  

And there's been a lot of discussion about this.  We've had calls from 

various people; why don't we allow them in our system.  Our current 

response has been our current system isn't that effective and efficient until 

we get a bigger, more robust system, and we don't want to convert and allow 

them in at this time, and that we would consider it as a part of the bigger 

near-term system that's supposed to open in 2018.  And we're saying to 

continue to study this.  We have a couple of reasons and our current 

recommendation is to open the system without it and to consider adding 

those after the system.  And the reason is this is based on projections, and 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

37 

 

our projections aren't that great just moving forward in terms of traffic.  

When you try and project how many HOV traffic you're going to have, the 

projections can get a little trickier even. 

 We think our HOV lane is going to operate pretty well and there's going to 

be some available capacity beyond what's going to be in there, and we could 

allow additional vehicles in, but we need to be careful.  I think our 

recommendation is continuing to monitor it, open up the system, see if 

there's available capacity in there before allowing more people in.  But this 

is a study that can be made.  It currently says the Department of 

Transportation can make that decision.  What we're talking about here are 

really high-mileage vehicles.  I believe in California it's more than 50 miles 

a gallon.  It's really only a Prius, two or three others, and the electrical 

vehicles.  It's not a hybrid SUV or anything.  So we want to continue to 

study this issue and close out this study and make it a policy issue moving 

forward. 

 The last one is access type.  And, again, for those of you that have driven in 

Southern California, I'd say we're talking about going to more of the 

Southern California model, and that is you cannot get in and out of the HOV 

lane anywhere you want.  There will be access locations proposed that you 

can get in and out of it, and you must stay in the lane you're in.  Otherwise, 

in between those spacing is about a half a mile or more and runs for a 

quarter of a mile where you can get in and out.  The reasons for that, we 

think it'll make our system more efficient.  We think it'll make -- the jury is 

still out on the safety issue.  Some say they think it's safer this way, but 

really the statistics don't necessarily back that up.  We're going to assist 

them.  That includes major flyovers.  As you get close to those major 

flyovers and decision points, you can't have traffic going in or out anyway.  

You would have to keep them out.  So we're recommending, and we studied 

this quite a bit, the limited access facility, which is different than the way it 

currently operates out on U.S. 95 today.  And maybe I'll stop here if you 

have any questions on the operational recommendations while we've got 

them up there. 

Sandoval: Questions from Board members?  Member Savage. 

Savage: Thank you, Governor.  And thank you, Mr. Terry.  Very informative, very 

thorough.  Just a question on is there a consultant assisting the Department 

on these studies? 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

38 

 

Terry: Yes, I believe in the first slide it was Jacobs Engineering as doing the update 

to the study.  Yes.  And that was an agreement that went before this Board, 

I'd say in late 2013, early 2014. 

Savage: And they're assisting in the single occupant study, as well, or is that internal 

department? 

Terry: I think we will probably close out this study.  I will say that they're the ones 

that gave us the recommendation of how much capacity is out there, what 

we think is going to be available as additional capacity, but I believe this is a 

decision that we have to make. 

Savage: Thank you, Mr. Terry.  Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: Member Skancke. 

Skancke: Thank you, Governor.  John, good presentation so far.  A couple of 

questions back a couple of slides on the express lanes to the HOV lanes.  

What was the determination of reducing the number of express lanes down 

to one and adding a general flow lane and having only one HOV lane? 

Terry: I'll give you two main reasons.  One is when we did the express lanes 

project six, seven years ago, there were, in essence, four general-purpose 

lanes and we only added one more.  One of our main policy points since the 

2007 study is we would not convert general-purpose lanes to HOV lanes.  

Even though for a four-year period in between, those were express lanes.  If 

we were to convert it, we would be, in essence, converting a general purpose 

lane to an HOV lane.  But that's not the main reason.  The main reason is 

capacity.  We ran the numbers through our projections and we feel like three 

is not enough general-purpose lanes and you would have unacceptable 

breakdown of the general-purpose lanes if you had two HOV lanes.  And 

that one HOV lane, while it's pushing up against its capacity, would be okay 

and that four general-purpose lanes was the right answer.  I believe the 

long-term answer on the core of I-15 is four general-purpose lanes and two 

HOV lanes, but that would be part of the 2025 and beyond study limits.  But 

I do not believe, and the numbers seem to bear it out, that we could tolerate 

three general-purpose lanes through that corridor. 

Skancke: And is it more difficult -- that was well said.  Is it challenging to come back 

in 10 years and say, oops, need a second HOV lane?  Are there any 

restriction or any laws or any regulation that would make it difficult for the 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

39 

 

Department to come back, say in 2020 and say, wow, we really missed that 

number, we need two HOV lanes? 

Terry: Well, nationwide there's been some oops the other way.  I mean California 

went out and simply almost one weekend or one week, many years ago, just 

restriped I-10 to Santa Monica to one HOV lane and took away a general-

purpose lane and there was a huge outcry about it.  We certainly would not 

do it without a big public involvement effort if we were to ever convert a 

general-purpose lane to an HOV lane.  I believe the numbers say through 

that core we need four general-purpose lanes and two HOV lanes.  Just like 

one of the recommendations of the original study was don't do what was 

proposed at the time, in the 2001 environmental assessment on U.S. 95, to 

go to two general-purpose lanes and one HOV lane.  And we didn't do that 

and we did a reevaluation of the EIS.  The split of traffic just isn't enough. 

 You don't have enough HOVs.  So if you can't go one and two, we decided 

as a policy to only go one when we had three general-purpose lanes.  If one 

and two doesn't make sense, the traffic splits don't make sense to go two and 

three.  You've really got to have two and four.  I don't know if I answered 

your question… 

Skancke: Yeah.  No… 

Terry: …but those are the thoughts we went through and why this was a big 

decision to go to one and four. 

Skancke: I'm trying to be proactive, right, so that we don't come back and say -- 

because with all of the economic development efforts and now with all of 

the things that the Governor has done in the legislature just (inaudible) on 

education, Southern Nevada's marketplace is going to become very popular 

over the next five years.  And what we don't want to do, in my opinion, is 

play catch up, right?  So for example, your hours; I was aware of the 

changes that were made to make those kind of flex hours for HOV lanes.  I 

agree with your assessment that they need to be going forward once the 

entire system-to-system connectivity is done that that's a 24-hour day, 

7-day-a-week operation.  You can't confuse the public, right, so you're either 

going to have an HOV system or you're going to have a temporary HOV 

system. 

 And so I think all of those things are very well thought out.  I like the 

limited access.  It does work from a safety point of view.  It also keeps 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

40 

 

people from shifting in and out.  And if you look at what happens in 

Southern California, where they aren't limited access, I just went through it 

this weekend, there's that constant dodging in and out and people don't care 

about double-yellow lines unless there's a highway patrolman behind them 

at the moment.  I had a question about school buses.  You have public 

transit, are school buses -- would they be eligible in the HOV lanes? 

Terry: When they've only got the driver in them, I'll have to get back to you on that 

one.  I don't know if they've only got the driver.  They're certainly eligible if 

they've got students on board. 

Skancke: Pardon me, Governor, this is an issue that I've spent a lot of time in over the 

last 20 years, and I've got a couple other questions, if that's all right.  What's 

the fine structure for someone who is violating?  Is there a statute that 

allows us to… 

Terry: I believe it's a $250 fine for violating the HOV lane if you're not an HOV 

and you're caught in there. 

Skancke: And… 

Terry: I doubt if very many are given out, but that's the fine. 

Skancke: Does that apply to trucks that accidentally get in that lane, as well?  Is that a 

higher fee, a lower fee?  In California, they sometimes sneak in because they 

actually operate as an express lane and they can move quicker through the 

corridor and then say, oops, I didn't know how I got over here, so… 

Terry: I'd have to get back to you on that.  All I know if the HOV lane violation. 

Skancke: And then on the low-emission vehicles, will there be a permit that's required 

for those vehicles to be in those lanes or what's our thought process on that? 

Terry: I believe we would have to do some infrastructure instead of leaving it up to 

the highway patrol to is this an eligible vehicle or not.  We would have to 

work with DMV and have some sort of sticker program.  So not only would 

you have to have a high-mileage vehicle, that high-mileage vehicle would 

have to have a sticker that DMV or somebody has said it's a qualifying 

vehicle.  So there's some infrastructure in place in order to do that. 

Skancke: And I'm not a lawyer, so would that require legislative activity action or 

could this Board set that regulation? 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

41 

 

Gallagher: Excuse me.  Dennis Gallagher, Counsel to the Board for the record.  It 

would probably require legislative action to impose the fine and set it. 

Skancke: And the permit for the vehicle, as well?  So like in California, they've got a 

sticker that goes on a low-emission vehicle that allows them to travel single 

occupant. 

Gallagher: Board member, I'd probably have to go look at the regulations that are in 

place for the Department of Motor Vehicles to see if they have that type of 

authority right now.  If they do, then they can go ahead with it.  If they don't 

have that type of authority, it may require legislative action. 

Skancke: My final comment, Governor and Board members, is this is a great 

opportunity for the state.  You had the chance to drive a driverless truck, 

which I think is a huge industry… 

Sandoval: I didn't actually drive. 

Skancke: Right.  I'm sorry, you had the opportunity to ride in a driverless vehicle.  

And I recently had a conversation with some interesting folks in Southern 

California about those types of corridors for the future.  And it appears to 

me that if there's any type of technology that is required for that to occur, 

now would be an appropriate time to take a look at what that technology 

would be required in that corridor, in those HOV lanes, and maybe we could 

make that a part of the infrastructure improvements.  I think driverless 

vehicles -- if you've watched TV lately, Mercedes-Benz has one.  There's 

over 250 cameras in that vehicle that they're testing.  They're advertising it 

and I would say that within the next three to five years, if not less, you're 

going to see driverless vehicles on the road being tested.  And know what 

we're doing in the state around electric vehicles and how we're advancing in 

our economic development arena, this would be a great corridor for that type 

of testing to occur.  And I would love to see Nevada be the first state to have 

that type of testing occur, and this might be a corridor where we could do 

that.  So final comments.  Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: Member Skancke, thank you.  And I think you bring to bear a very 

important point, because Nevada was fortunate to be the first place in the 

world to test these autonomous trucks.  And if there's a way to add another 

component in here that makes our transportation system anticipate these 

types of vehicles, because they're coming.  I mean it's -- no one would ever, 

ever imagine this iPhone a few years ago, and I feel the same way about the 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

42 

 

technology associated with autonomous vehicles.  So it would be, I think, a 

great feather in the cap of the State of Nevada, and particularly for Las 

Vegas, to have that infrastructure already in place so that we can 

accommodate that type of vehicle. 

 Now, the technology associated is so beyond my pay grade that I can't even 

articulate it, but if there's a way to plug that into this analysis, we should do 

it.  And I think there's no doubt that we will have these autonomous 

vehicles, but if we have specified lanes for those or what have you, it 

really -- because I'm not aware of any other metropolitan area in the world 

that is working on this.  And we have a great opportunity here to anticipate 

that. 

Skancke: If you could attract the company here, do it. 

Terry: I will say that we just got back here last month from the AASHTO 

semi-annual meeting.  This one happened to be in Wyoming, and some of 

this technology was a discussion nationwide at that meeting.  And I will say 

it's not just autonomous vehicles.  Many of the current vehicles that are 

being put into the fleet moving forward have some sort of lane departure or 

other technology built into them.  And the discussion at AASHTO was how 

do we make sure our lane stripes and our other things are detectable by even 

the ones that are currently being put in vehicles, much less moving forward 

into vehicles that have stuff that we don't even imagine yet.  And nationwide 

it's being a struggle and I agree, we need to be at the forefront of that, but it's 

a tricky area because the technologies are evolving. 

Sandoval: Yeah, and I don't know if it involves sensors.  I know that the vehicle that I 

was riding in was reading the striping.  And so if we have special striping 

and we're on top of that striping, it will allow for the operation of those 

vehicles when that day comes.  So as I said, I can't really talk real 

intelligently about this because I don't know if you have to put things in the 

road, if it requires the striping, if it requires sensors on the sides. 

Terry: All of the above. 

Sandoval: Okay.  But it's kind of like the schools these days.  I mean, we've got so 

many schools that were built in the '60s and the '70s and they don't have the 

infrastructure for the Wi-Fi and all the technology.  And I would really like 

to be able to insert these things now rather than, as Mr. Skancke says, going 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

43 

 

back and trying to do it later.  And then we'll go to Mr. Skancke and then the 

Controller. 

Skancke: Just a follow up on that.  I mean this is a really interesting opportunity for 

Nevada to sit down with 3M and IBM and GM and Mercedes-Benz and all 

these manufacturers, and maybe we start with ITS America.  But attract 

those companies here to a summit or a conversation around how we create, 

to use the cliché, a smart corridor, and create it and be smart about how we 

create the corridor.  Let them test their product here and then we become the 

pilot as opposed to San Diego or Orange County, who always gets the first 

bite at this apple.  If we're ahead of this and we're having that conversation 

then we attract those companies here.  And what has to happen then?  They 

manufacture it here and test it here and we become the pilot program.  

Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: No, and well said, Mr. Skancke.  And we have a head start in having spoken 

with the head of Daimler, who manufactured that freightliner.  They couldn't 

test anywhere else on the planet except for Nevada, because we were so far 

ahead in terms of having the regulations in place for the autonomous 

vehicles.  And so I really like that idea in terms of putting together a summit 

in that regard. 

Skancke: Operations Engineer, Denise Inda, has something to add to this. 

Inda: Good morning, Governor, members of the Board.  I just want to let you all 

know that Nevada is very engaged in the connected vehicle concepts.  We 

have a project, which was actually the agreement -- a small agreement was 

on today's Agenda for consent.  What the project that we're working on is, is 

called Integrated Mobile Observations.  The concept is to connect; it's 

vehicle to infrastructure.  There's vehicle to vehicle and vehicle to 

infrastructure.  Both of which are very important components of the 

connected vehicle system.  Our small pilot project is for vehicle to 

infrastructure.  What we're doing is we're utilizing the FHWA prototype, or 

the recommendation for communications, which is DSRC.  And what it is, is 

it's just the communications method for getting that information transmitted 

back and forth between vehicles. 

 We are doing in Nevada tests to gather weather and road condition 

information from NDOT maintenance vehicles to bring it back in to 

determine how that can help us better maintain the roads during winter snow 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

44 

 

and ice conditions.  So it's a small subset of this bigger connected vehicle. 

With $500,000 of federal funds, we are putting in a pilot corridor between 

Reno and Carson City to test this concept.  My vision is that this kind of a 

small pilot project can enable us to do other sorts of work in other areas.  

Las Vegas obviously has a lot of -- there's a lot of value and a lot of benefits 

from doing that kind of work in a much more populated, much more higher 

volume areas.  So I think Nevada is setting itself up well to be engaged and 

involved, but I just wanted to bring that to your attention. 

Sandoval: No, thank you.  And I want to be engaged and involved, but I also want to 

be ahead. 

Inda: Excuse me.  At ITS America last week, the State of Virginia did announce 

testing corridor for autonomous vehicles.  So there are lots of states who are 

involved in that, but there's lot of opportunities for a lot of players, I believe, 

because it's such a huge endeavor. 

Sandoval: Well, perhaps to follow up on Member Skancke's idea for a future Agenda 

item, let's see what it takes to put together that summit. 

Malfabon: Governor, we are sending Tracy Larkin to an Automated Vehicles 

Symposium in July.  So when she gathers some of that information maybe 

we'll have a future presentation on the subject to the Board. 

Sandoval: Well, perhaps we can shoot before the end of the year to have that type of 

summit and do it in Southern Nevada. 

Malfabon: Okay. 

Skancke: I have some time on my hands beginning June 30th, so I'd be happy to 

volunteer to -- I'll be gainfully unemployed July 1st, so I'd be happy to 

volunteer to help you out with that. 

Malfabon: Thank you. 

Sandoval: Mr. Controller. 

Knecht: Thank you, Governor, and everybody else.  My remarks will be 

substantially shorter because you covered the first thing I was going to say 

and probably better than I could have said it.  But, Tom, you brought up a 

really good point.  And, John and Denise, I'm really happy to hear that we 

are at the cutting edge.  I was explaining this over last week to my wife, 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

45 

 

daughter, and mother-in-law at home, especially after we drove I-15 the 

weekend before.  Which brings me to my other question, coming back to 

your little graphic here.  In my experience over the last couple years driving 

that area extensively, you may know or not that 14 years ago we became 

People's Republic of California displaced persons back into the real world, 

but we escaped the HOV preoccupation that California has and all its other 

PC preoccupations, some of which you point out they've retreated from.  

And my question is, driving this, I'm looking at it from the point of view of 

the general public that uses the general-purpose lanes and today uses the 

express lanes also.  Can you say today, John, that when we move from two 

express and three general-purpose lanes to one HOV and four general-

purpose lanes, can you say whether the flow of traffic at peak and shoulder 

peak times on I-15, for example, for the general public not in the HOVs will 

be better, more efficient, safer, faster or not or worse or what?  What's our 

expectation? 

Terry: It's all tied together with Project NEON.  We anticipate, as we've told this 

Board previously and that our modeling was done on that, is that traffic 

through the core of Las Vegas will be greatly improved with Project NEON 

to well beyond the 2025 level in the southbound direction because we 

essentially built almost everything.  You weren't present on the Board when 

we made a presentation about adding that phase five into NEON. 

 And that in the northbound, even though we didn't complete all aspects of 

NEON, that it will be acceptable and a much improved level of service and 

freeway flow for a number of years, until we get to the final phase five, 

which is down the road, and that this conversion to one HOV and four 

general-purpose is a big part of that.  I'm not going to sit here and tell you 

there won't be any congestion on I-15 when NEON opens, because I think, 

like most big projects, it's going to move the level of congestion to a 

different spot.  And I think in the vicinity of Tropicana, which we're already 

working on, is where that congestion is going to kind of move to.  But it will 

be greatly improved. 

Knecht: If I may follow up.  You're talking there southbound in the vicinity of 

Tropicana as the problem? 

Terry: Both northbound and southbound.  We currently have a congestion issue.  

There's five lanes underneath Tropicana with about a two-foot shoulder.  

And until we replace that bridge, we can't add any more lanes there.  And 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

46 

 

that is currently the congestion where the collector road's built as a part of 

I-15.  South design-build come in and then southbound it is also a 

congestion point, but it's being metered by the area by NEON.  I think when 

we open up NEON more southbound, the congestion is going to move more 

to there.  But I think it will be far better with NEON.  And this conversion of 

the HOV lane is a part of it. 

Malfabon: And we're studying the Tropicana Interchange and what to do there? 

Terry: Yes, that's correct. 

Knecht: All you say comports with my experience down there, that southbound is a 

little better right now than northbound.  And, indeed, the southbound 

problem is further north, but the northbound problem is often times very 

severe.  And I just want to emphasize my point as a California refugee that 

we don't sacrifice the broad scope of general-purpose use by non-HOV lanes 

to an overreaching preference for too much HOV at the expense of 

everybody else.  And I was really glad to hear you recognize that that's a 

possible problem and one that we need to anticipate. 

Terry: If I could answer that.  Even when we did the original study, I mean many 

of the experts from nationwide will tell you one way to get good usage of 

your HOV lanes is allow your general-purpose lanes to breakdown so that 

your HOV lanes get such a time advantage.  And that is not has been our 

theory moving forward.  Certainly, there's going to be congestion point in 

the general-purpose lanes and the HOV lanes will travel slightly faster, but 

we have never bought in to doing that.  We are trying to keep our 

general-purpose lanes at a good level of service.  But, frankly, we're falling 

behind in Las Vegas, and we're doing the best we can to keep up, and this is 

a big part of the overall program. 

Sandoval: John, just to make sure; that is not an option.  It'll never be an option.  All 

right. 

Terry: Understood. 

Knecht: What the Governor said and what Mr. Terry said.  I agree. 

Terry: Any more on these?  I've got a little bit more of the presentation.  Could I go 

to the next one, please.  So we talked about limited egress and ingress, and 

this graphic attempts to show where we're currently proposing to have the 

ingress and egress points.  And like I say, that's like a quarter-mile stretch 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

47 

 

where you have a skip stripe that allows you in and out of the HOV lane.  So 

you'll see they have been laid out preliminarily here and we will finalize the 

striping.  So the current plan is to build Project NEON and Project NEON 

will cover most of I-15 and a little bit out 95, and then we will put out some 

sort of contract on 95 to change the striping and the signing on 95 so that it 

opens with Project NEON.  Next please. 

 We have performance measures, and maybe this addresses some of your 

questions.  We have performance measures on pretty much everything else 

we do.  These are the performance measures that have been, I would say, 

updated.  They were before but they have been updated as a part of this 

study of what we do with HOV lanes and how we monitor them.  We want 

to optimize the movement of people.  We want more people to get through 

the corridor.  We want to provide a travel time savings for a more reliable 

trip and to increase the bus and transit efficiency, which the buses have been 

using our HOV system, and we anticipate they're going to continue to and, 

in fact, add to the bus usage of our HOV system.  So these are the 

performance measures that we're applying to the HOV system.  Next please. 

 So where are we going moving forward?  We want to finalize the plan and 

move forward with -- finalize the update.  We want to implement the 

operational recommendations so that we put things like 24-hour operations 

on our signs as a part of NEON; that we put the striping in that meet the 

limited ingress and egress; that Project NEON will complete the near-term 

system for the HOV system, and we'll have -- I forget, I believe it's like 

21-mile HOV system when it's done; adding park and ride facilities and 

working with the RTC and local agencies.  We already are expanding one of 

the park and ride facilities and I think we'll continue to do that.  And then 

program HOV projects within the STIP for the long-term system.  This is 

what we did when we finished the 2007 study.  The results came out.  We 

said we needed to add what ended up being the direct connector as NEON 

and other elements of that study into the STIP so they could become projects 

moving forward.  Now we're talking about in more of the long-range 

system, beyond NEON, putting in projects like direct connectors, direct 

access, and more projects into the STIP moving forward.  With that, I can 

answer any of your questions. 

Sandoval: Thank you.  Any more questions from Board members?  Mr. Martin, any 

questions from you? 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

48 

 

Martin: No, sir.  It was very comprehensive.  Thank you, John. 

Sandoval: Yes.  Well done.  Thank you.  We'll move to Agenda Item No. 11, which is 

the Report on the Status of Project NEON. 

Malfabon: Yes, Governor and Board members, as every quarter we have Cole 

Mortensen, our project manager from Project NEON give you an update.  

Cole. 

Mortensen: Good morning, Governor, members of the Board.  For the record, my name 

is Cole Mortensen, one of the project managers for Project NEON.  I guess 

first off, schedule for the project.  We're moving forward.  We're 

anticipating proposals at the end of July.  And so once that happens then 

we'll be going through the proposal evaluation process and we anticipate 

having preferred proposers selected in September, and then having the 

contract executed late fall. 

 Right now, we're wrapping up our alternative technical concept period.  And 

this is where the proposers come to NDOT with their innovations and their 

cost reductions and let us know some of their ideas and we kind of get an 

initial opportunity to approve those.  And, again, those are things that are 

providing a better project and a more cost-effective bid form.  With that, I'd 

like to thank the three teams again, because it is a labor-intensive process.  

We have our next round of one-on-ones with the teams on Thursday, but the 

three teams again are Kiewit and Adkins, Las Vegas Paving, and Jacobs and 

the NEON Mobility Constructors, and they are joint venture with Granite 

and Skanska and Aztrack and the Louis Berger Group. 

 We are also holding a public meeting for Project NEON on Wednesday 

night from 4:00 to 7:00.  And really what this is getting out to the public one 

more time here and letting them know about some of the changes that we've 

had with the project, just a few minor things.  And I discussed those at the 

Board meetings here previously.  The at-grades intersection at Grand 

Central Parkway and Charleston, as well as an eastbound access point from 

Charleston going up to Martin Luther King Boulevard to add additional 

connectivity for the medical district there and potentially the new school of 

medicine at that location, if that's chosen. 

 So moving forward, I want to give you guys an update on the right-of-way 

process and the progress that we're making.  This drawing just simply 

denotes the difference between the Phase 1 and the other parcels that we 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

49 

 

needed for the design-build project.  And so on this drawing here, the 

parcels in blue are the Phase 1 parcels and the parcels in red are the 

remaining properties that we need to acquire for the design-build project. 

 So for Phase 1 -- I'm afraid this was not the updated -- it's 57.  Correct.  57 

of the 58 parcels.  We've got one outstanding.  We've got eight relocations 

remaining for Phase 1, and so we really are getting down to where we're 

wrapping it up for the Phase 1 property.  So if we take a step back and we 

look at the outcomes, 38 of the parcels settled through normal negotiations, 

and we've got 20 parcels that have been referred to condemnation.  As you 

can see the breakdown down below, it's 12 property owners.  So we've got 6 

of those have reached settlement, 1 is going to trial, and the remaining 5 are 

pending either settlement or trial.  To date on Phase 1 acquisitions, we've 

spent $102 million total. 

 And so for the remaining properties for the design-build phase, we've got 82 

offers that have been made out of the 135 parcels that we have to acquire.  

54 of those parcels have been acquired or are in the process.  We've 

completed 49 relocations and we've had 6 parcels to date referred to 

condemnation.  In the future, we anticipate having appraisals complete for 

all of the parcels by the third quarter of 2015, and have all the offers to all 

the parcels by the fourth quarter of 2015.  And to date, we're at about $14.5 

million on the properties remaining for the design-build project, so that 

brings the total up to a little over $116 million total on that (inaudible) for 

Project NEON.  And that concludes my presentation at this point. 

Sandoval: Thank you, Mr. Mortensen.  And trying to get to the bottom line; first, we're 

on schedule? 

Mortensen: We are on schedule, and we're excited about that. 

Sandoval: No, and a compliment to that, because this is as complicated as it gets and 

with all these different parcels and all the different issues that we've talked 

about today, that's a great accomplishment for where we are right now.  So I 

wanted to thank you for that and everybody on your team. 

Mortensen: Yeah, absolutely.  The team that we've had has been instrumental in keeping 

us on track here so far.  As far as the right-of-way process that we have in 

place, we've notified the three contractors as to when we anticipate having 

those properties in the future.  We've looked at each one of those 

independently to determine the appropriate time frames as to when we 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

50 

 

anticipate getting those acquired, so they're all aware of our schedule and 

our process as far as the acquisitions go. 

Sandoval: I don't recall specifically, and I don't want to jinx anything, but if we stay on 

schedule, when is that day when we can move that first pile of dirt? 

Mortensen: Well, we anticipate having the contractor issue -- the second notice to 

proceed to the contractor early 2016, and at that point really they're going to 

start moving dirt.  As I mentioned earlier, and I can -- well, it's not up there 

now, but all those parcels in blue on the map, we've got occupancy to all of 

those.  And we're currently, as you saw earlier, demolishing structures now 

so that we're managing that risk to the Department, but basically they'll be 

able to start in those areas where we have a significant amount of property 

in the early part of 2016 and moving forward.   

Sandoval: So we're six, eight months away from… 

Mortensen: Correct. 

Sandoval: …commencing with Project NEON. 

Mortensen: From seeing equipment out there.  Absolutely. 

Sandoval: And then second, are we on budget? 

Mortensen: So far with the right-of-way acquisitions, we're where we expected to be 

from the budget standpoint.  Again, there's still a handful of more 

complicated acquisitions that we haven't gone through specifically.  Like 

with Phase 1, there's still a few out there that we haven't settled.  And, of 

course, I was aware your concerns are, but, yes, at this point in time we're 

where we anticipated being on budget. 

Sandoval: Well, and in fairness to you on this on budget, is you can't control the 

property values going up. 

Mortensen: Correct. 

Sandoval: And the good thing is, as Member Skancke talked about, is things are 

happening in Las Vegas, Clark County.  And that has something to do with 

the costs and the values associated with acquiring those parcels. 

Mortensen: Correct.  And I've tried to be careful when I talk about the cost for 

right-of-way, because when we say we're on budget we've actually budgeted 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

51 

 

additional based on the risks that we'd anticipated going into the future.  

And some of those risks, of course, are the market coming back and having 

that inflation happen, as well.  And so I guess the budget that we have isn't 

the property value now, but there actually is budget in there to account for 

growth. 

Sandoval: All right.  I have no further questions.  Other members?  Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  And, Cole, thank you.  You and your team bit off a 

whole bunch to chew here and it's to your credit to where we are, the fact 

that we're on schedule, within budget.  You've done a real nice job, all of 

you.  The acquisitions for rights-of-way, right now if I heard you right, we're 

into it $102 million, correct? 

Mortensen: $116.5 total.  And that's between both -- or the original Phase 1 parcels that 

we had started on several years ago, and then the additional parcels for the 

design-build project. 

Fransway: Okay.  And that is only Phase 1?  It's the entire chunk -- it's the entire 

amount of right-of-way that we had expected. 

Fransway: Okay.  And $100 million in bonds that was approved, obviously that's gone.  

And… 

Mortensen: Not quite yet. 

Fransway: No? 

Mortensen: The $100 million for right-of-way that was approved was approved for the 

additional parcels that we needed for the design-build project at that time.  

And I guess where I'm going is we already had budget set aside for the 

Phase 1 properties.  And so while we are spending against that bond now, 

that bond was really in funding the right-of-way moving forward from that 

point. 

Fransway: Okay.  So we've supplemented the original $100 million with other funds 

from other areas within NDOT's General Fund, right? 

Mortensen: Correct. 

Fransway: Okay.  And are you confident that we will not need any more bonding on 

this particular acquisition portion of NEON? 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

52 

 

Mortensen: That's going to be a tough thing to predict.  Like I said… 

Fransway: Okay. 

Mortensen: …we have the budget out there.  We still have a number of complicated 

parcels that we're working on acquiring.  And so to be able to tell you that I 

don't think that we'll have to figure out where to come up with some 

additional funding, there's the potential there, but like I said, right now we 

are on budget.  And so I guess to answer your question is I wouldn't say that. 

Fransway: Okay.  Thank you.  And once again, thank you for where we started, where 

we are, and where we're going to be.  And your team deserves a lot of credit.  

Thanks a lot. 

Mortensen: Thank you.  I appreciate that.  And it really wouldn't be -- it's a team effort 

and we've got a lot of good people on this project that have really worked 

hard to push it through.  It's been a great experience. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: Thank you.  Member Savage. 

Savage: Thank you, Governor.  And, Cole, I too sincerely want to thank yourself, 

Dale, the administration.  There's a lot of sleepless nights and we know this 

is a major, major project.  And the Board is very engaged.  We appreciate 

you communicating with us, keeping us up to speed.  And I know nothing's 

perfect.  There's going to be issues.  We understand that.  We're big-picture 

people, but I think you guys have your hands on the wheel right now and 

there's a lot of sleepless nights.  And I just wanted to let you know that I 

appreciate it. 

 One of the questions I have for you, Mr. Mortensen, is I was surprised at the 

95 ATCs.  The 95 alternative concepts that have been brought back to the 

Department.  And I ask you if all those ATCs are confidential amongst the 

individual contractors or are they shared with other contractors? 

Mortensen: No, no.  Those are all -- we have very strict confidentiality polices in place 

to keep those confidential, because they are good ideas and they have the 

potential to give teams a cost advantage in the bidding process.  And so we 

keep those very confidential.  We keep all those conversations limited to 

those individuals.  And I will say that out of the process there have been 

some changes that have been made to the RFP, because from a project 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

53 

 

standpoint it was better to have it across the board for all three proposers, 

but it wasn't necessarily something where it was really innovative concept 

that we went and said, hey, well why don't you guys all have this for your 

proposal. 

Savage: Well, I'm glad to hear that.  I thought that would be the answer, because I 

believe it's imperative that the Department show the trust to the contractors 

and the confidentiality, along with the consultant and everybody involved 

knowing if anything is compromised it could really hurt the project.  So I 

thank you again.  I thank your team.  I thank the consultant ensuring we 

keep this thing on track.  Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: Member Skancke. 

Skancke: Thank you, Governor.  I just want to echo my colleague's comments.  I think 

you guys have done a superb job at keeping this on time and on schedule 

and on budget.  And this is a very exciting time for our state.  This is a 

project that's been talked about for, wow, 15 years or longer.  And to 

actually see this come to fruition is quite an exciting time for our state, so 

congratulations.  Can someone e-mail me this presentation?  I'd like to use 

this in another -- so I'm going to steal it and copy it.  I'll put my name on it 

and take your name off and use it someplace else, but… 

Mortensen: Well, let me know if you need any of the graphics so we can get that right 

too. 

Skancke: I'd like to get a copy of this. Thank you very much. 

Sandoval: All right.  Any questions or comments from Southern Nevada? 

Martin: No, sir. 

Sandoval: Cole, thank you. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Cole. 

Sandoval: Let's move to Agenda Item No. 12, Old Business. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  The first section is on the Report of Outside Counsel 

Cost and Open Matters and the Monthly Litigation Report.  Is there any 

questions for our chief counsel, Dennis Gallagher? 

Sandoval: Any questions from -- Mr. Controller. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

54 

 

Knecht: Thank you, Governor.  And just looking, Mr. Gallagher, at Attachment A in 

Item 12, I notice that there are a small number of firms that have a 

substantial dollar volume of contract authority remaining.  Are these firms 

that -- there are about three or four of them there.  One of them, the 

Chapman Law Firm, I think is pretty big.  Laura Fitzsimmons, I'm not so 

sure about with over $1.4 million.  Are we comfortable that they have the 

capability if we actually have to expend all those amounts within the 

remaining time period that they'll be able to deliver on those contracts and 

not be overburdened and overworked? 

Gallagher: For the record, Dennis Gallagher, Counsel for the Board.  To address your 

question, yes, we're comfortable.  We budget the cases at the beginning and 

that budgets reflects the estimate through trial.  We hope we don't have to go 

through trial, and as our experience has shown, so far we're able to settle 

quite a few prior to that point.  But for whatever reason, regrettably, we're 

not able to settle before they become condemnation actions referred to the 

Board. 

 Part of the selection process was not only the expertise of the particular law 

firms in this area of the law, which frankly is only a small number of 

lawyers that are willing to work the government side of these types of cases.  

And as we look at future assignments, we look at their current caseload not 

only from NDOT, but we always ask the question, "What is your capacity 

going forward?" 

Knecht: So just one follow-up, Governor.  It would be fair to say that you could add 

up those contract authority remaining amounts and look at the date and say, 

well, we don't actually expect to spend that much on average with those, so 

it's not a burn rate of a million dollars in a year or something like that. 

Gallagher: Yes, Board member.  I mean each one of these cases look at individually 

when we try to budget and forecast it.  I think our history shows, though, 

that not all of the matters that are referred for condemnation actually go 

through trial.  A number of them are settled at different points through the 

process.  Some we're able to settle early on, some will go the full route. 

Knecht: Thank you.  And thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: Any other questions from Board members?  Okay. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

55 

 

Malfabon: Okay.  Continuing, Governor, we have the Fatality Report.  And these 

numbers were significant.  The latest report, though, dated July -- I mean, 

I'm sorry, June 2nd, shows that the -- at least the trend is starting to come 

down.  So we are seven fatalities compared to this time last year.  So very 

significant numbers in the report that you received, but I'm pleased to report 

that at least the trend is starting to reverse.  And some of the projects that we 

highlighted, such as the signal by the Bonanza Casino, are helping us in 

those efforts.  A lot of kudos to other entities, especially the City of Las 

Vegas and Southern Nevada, that are also doing safety projects, some of 

them located on state highways. 

 And the next pedestrian safety project that we're going to probably complete 

would be the one up at Incline Village.  There's a rapid rectangular flasher 

similar to what you see on Stewart Street that gets the driver's attention 

when there's a pedestrian there.  So any questions on part C of Item 12? 

 Moving on, we have the regular update on the Freeway Service Patrol.  And 

you'll note in that update a photograph of the Freeway Service Patrol 

vehicles with the State Farm logo.  That's associated with a campaign to 

offset some of the expenses of the Freeway Service Patrol program.  So that 

sponsorship, and the numbers associated with the savings that basically 

offset our costs, are noted there in Paragraph 4 of Attachment D.  So it's 

good news for us.  It allows us to give credit where it's due, but also saves us 

money on that program.  Any questions on Freeway Service Patrol Report? 

Sandoval: Does that complete your… 

Malfabon: That completes that item. 

Sandoval: …report with regard to Old Business? 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Sandoval: All right.  Before I leave Old Business, any other questions from Board 

members?  We'll move on to Agenda Item No. 13, Public Comment.  Is 

there any member of the public here in Carson City that would like to 

provide comment to the Board?  Is there anyone present in Las Vegas that 

would like to provide comment to the Board? 

Martin: Mary Martini would like to provide a comment. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 

Board of Director's Meeting 

June 8, 2015 

 

 

56 

 

Martini: Yes, this is Mary Martini, District Engineer in Las Vegas.  I would just like 

to wish the Director a happy birthday. 

Malfabon: It's coming up soon. 

Sandoval: You were holding out on us. 

Malfabon: It's not quite today, but I will celebrate it when it's due. 

Sandoval: All right.  Well, happy birthday. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  Thanks, Mary. 

Sandoval: All right.  Hearing no further comment, we'll move to -- or public comment, 

we'll move to Agenda Item No. 14, Adjournment.  Is there a motion to 

adjourn? 

Fransway: Governor, I would move to continue this meeting (inaudible). 

Sandoval: I don't think you're going to get a second for that. 

Fransway: I move to adjourn, Governor. 

Sandoval: All right.  We have a motion to adjourn by Member Fransway.  Is there a 

second? 

Skancke: Second. 

Sandoval: Second by Member Skancke.  Any questions or discussion?  All in favor say 

aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Motion passes.  This meeting is adjourned.  Thank you, ladies and 

gentlemen. 

 

 

 

______________________________   ______________________________ 

Secretary to Board      Preparer of Minute 



 
MEMORANDUM 

                             June 29, 2015   
TO:   Department of Transportation Board of Directors  
FROM:  Rudy Malfabon, Director   
SUBJECT:      July 6, 2015, Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #6: Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 -  For Possible Action 
 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:   
 
The purpose of this item is to provide the Board a list of agreements over $300,000 for 
discussion and approval following the process approved at the July 11, 2011 Transportation 
Board meeting.  This list consists of any design build contracts and all agreements (and 
amendments) for non-construction matters, such as consultants, service providers, etc. that 
obligate total funds of over $300,000, during the period from May 14, 2015, through June 10, 
2015. 
 
Background: 
 
The Department contracts for services relating to the development, construction, operation and 
maintenance of the State’s multi-modal transportation system. The attached agreements 
constitute all new agreements, new task orders on existing agreements, and all amendments 
which take the total agreement above $300,000 during the period from May 14, 2015, through 
June 10, 2015. 
 
Analysis: 
 
These agreements have been prepared following the Code of Federal Regulations, Nevada 
Revised Statutes, Nevada Administrative Code, State Administrative Manual, and/or 
Department policies and procedures. They represent the necessary support services needed to 
deliver the State of Nevada’s multi-modal transportation system.  
 
List of Attachments:    
 
A) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Agreements for Approval, May 14, 2015, 

through June 10, 2015 
 

Recommendation for Board Action:    
 
Approval of all agreements listed on Attachment A 
 
Prepared by:  Administrative Services Division 
 
 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 

Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 

Page 1 of 19



Attachment 

A 

Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 

Page 2 of 19



Attachment A

Line 
No 

Agreement 
No

Amend 
No Contractor Purpose Fed  Original Agreement 

Amount 
 Amendment 

Amount  Payable Amount Receivable 
Amount Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree 

Type
Dept. Project 

Manager Notes

1 10215 00 PARSONS 
TRANSPORTATION 
GROUP, INC.

CONSTRUCTION 
CREW 
AUGMENTATION 

Y         2,974,924.83 -                      2,974,924.83 -             7/6/2015 4/30/2017           - Service 
Provider

MEGAN 
SIZELOVE 

07-06-15: CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING SERVICES 
FOR AUGMENTATION OF CREW 907, FOR US 395, 
CARSON CITY FREEWAY, FROM SOUTH CARSON 
STREET TO FAIRVIEW DRIVE, PACKAGE 2B-3. 
CARSON CITY. NV B/L#: NV19781009263-R

2 13515 00 CA GROUP, INC. CONSTRUCTION 
CREW 
AUGMENTATION 

Y         2,748,252.58 -                      2,748,252.58 -             7/6/2015 5/31/2017           - Service 
Provider

MEGAN 
SIZELOVE 

07-06-15: CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING SERVICES 
FOR AUGMENTATION OF CREW 926, US 95 PACKAGE 
3A FROM US 95 TO TENAYA. CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
NV20081407877-R

3 55614 00 JACOBS 
ENGINEERING 
GROUP, INC. 

PRELIMINARY 
DESIGN SERVICES

Y         2,645,000.00 -                      2,645,000.00 -             7/6/2015 12/31/2016           - Service 
Provider

DWAYNE 
WILKINSON

07-06-15: ALTERNATIVES DEVELOPMENT STUDY, 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTATION, AND 
CONCEPTUAL DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE I-515 
CORRIDOR FROM US 95 AND RANCHO DRIVE TO I-515 
AND THE WYOMING AVENUE GRADE SEPARATION, 
CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV20081035082-R

4 37415 00 CARBAJAL & 
MCNUTT, LLP

LEGAL SERVICES Y            400,000.00 -                         400,000.00 -             7/6/2015 6/30/2018           - Service 
Provider

DENNIS 
GALLAGHER

07-06-15: LEGAL COUNSEL TO REPRESENT AND 
ADVISE THE DEPARTMENT IN AN EMINENT DOMAIN 
CONDEMNATION MATTER FOR PROJECT NEON 
DESIGN BUILD, CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
NV20061465896-S

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Agreements for Approval

May 14, 2015, through June 10, 2015

Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 

Page 3 of 19



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 

Page 4 of 19



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 

Page 5 of 19



NDOT 
070-069 
Rev 09/14 

STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

June 15, 2015 
 

 
TO:  Reid Kaiser, Assistant Director 
 
FROM: Megan Sizelove, Project Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Negotiation Summary for RFP P102-15-040 Project ID 60604 / Project No. NHP-

395-1(027), I-580/US-395 Carson City Freeway, from south Carson Street (SR 
529) to Fairview Drive, Package 2B-3, CC 0.05 to 3.15.   

 
 A negotiation meeting was held at NDOT District 2 office in Sparks on May 29 February 
23, 2015, with David Titzel and Jean-Paul Woyton of Parsons and Megan Sizelove and Lisa 
Schettler of the Nevada Department of Transportation (DEPARTMENT) in attendance. 
 
 The DBE goal for this agreement has been established at zero percent (0%). 
 
 The scope of services that are to be provided by the SERVICE PROVIDER was 
reaffirmed by both parties at the outset. 

Consultant shall provide qualified personnel and equipment; Assistant Resident Engineer, Office 
Person/Inspector Tech IV, and up to a total of seven (7) Inspectors level IV and/or Material 
Testers, and necessary equipment including nuclear gauges, trucks and cell phones. 

 Key personnel dedicated to this project are as follows: 
 
Parsons 
David Titzel   Assistant Resident Engineer 
Tony Kaiser   Office Person/Inspector Tech IV 
Mike Hobbs   Engr Tech IV Insp 
Chris Cocking   Engr Tech IV Insp 
Glenn Adams   Engr Tech IV Insp 
Jerry Maio   Las Vegas Tester/Inspector  
 
Black Eagle Consulting, Inc. 
Glenn Hough   Materials Tester 
Tyler Hough   Materials Tester 
Jackie Miranda  Materials Tester 
 
 The DEPARTMENT's original estimate was $3,939,012.00 million which included direct 
labor, overhead rate, a 10% fee, and direct expenses (including sub-consultant expenses). 
 
 The SERVICE PROVIDER's original estimate was $3,038,975.07, including direct labor, 
overhead rate of 121.97%, a 10% fee, and direct expenses (including sub-consultant 
expenses). 
 
 The negotiations yielded the following: 
 

1. Adjustment of anticipated hours needed for each position based upon the 
contractor’s schedule. Hours worked by the Service Provider are at the direction of 
the Resident Engineer. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8B2568E9-5917-4F6A-ACC3-A12E0D02FC20

Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 

Page 6 of 19



NDOT 
070-069 
Rev 09/14 

2. Adjustment of start and completion date.  
3. Replaced Inspector Tech IV with an Inspector Tech II based on needs of C907. 
4. Based upon recent audit performed by Cherry Bekaert an overhead rate of 121.97% 

is being used. 
5. Additional person to perform inspection and testing of the pre-cast sound wall panel 

inspection/testing.  
6. Deletion of vehicle for office person. 
7. Adjustment of base rates to be more consistent with industry. 
8. Due to this contract being documented electronically with the FieldManager software 

the Department will provide the inspectors laptops for the duration of this project. 
Thus, we were able to eliminate this line item from their original cost proposal.  

9. The total negotiated cost for this agreement, including direct labor, overhead, fee and 
direct expenses will be $2,974,924.83. 

 
Reviewed and Approved: 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Assistant Director 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8B2568E9-5917-4F6A-ACC3-A12E0D02FC20

William Hoffman 6/18/2015 

Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 

Page 7 of 19

https://trust.docusign.com


Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 

Page 8 of 19



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 

Page 9 of 19



NDOT 
070-069 
Rev 09/14 

STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

June 18, 2015 
 

 
TO:  Reid Kaiser, Assistant Director 
 
FROM: Megan Sizelove, Project Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Negotiation Summary for RFP P135-15-040, Contract 3583, Project No. NHP-

STP-095-2(061), US 95 Phase 3A, from US95 to Tenaya Way.   
 
 A negotiation meeting was held on June 15, 2015, with Shawn Meagher of CA Group 
and Megan Sizelove of the Nevada Department of Transportation (DEPARTMENT). 
 
 The DBE goal for this agreement has been established at zero percent (0%). 
 
 The scope of services that are to be provided by the SERVICE PROVIDER was 
reaffirmed by both parties at the outset. 

Consultant shall provide qualified personnel and equipment; Office Person, part time Scheduler, 
part time Surveyor (PLS), up to three (3) Inspector Tech IV, and up to two (2) Material Testers, 
and necessary equipment including nuclear gauges, trucks, cell phones, and survey equipment. 

 Key personnel dedicated to this project are as follows: 
 
CA Group 
Prashant Dhungana/ 
Keith Ferguson  Scheduler 
Stacey Ferguson  Office Person 
Anthony Williams  Inspector Tech IV  
James Wondra  Inspector Tech IV  
Narda Renteria  Inspector Tech IV  
Robert Foley   Surveyor (PLS) 
Greg Gunderson  Materials Tester 
Robbie Stupak  Materials Tester 
 
 The DEPARTMENT's original estimate was $2,755,257.00 million which included direct 
labor, overhead rate, a 10% fee, and direct expenses (including sub-consultant expenses). 
 
 The SERVICE PROVIDER's original estimate was $3,238,281.97, including direct labor, 
overhead rate of 158.44%, a 10% fee, and direct expenses (including sub-consultant 
expenses). 
 
 The negotiations yielded the following: 
 

1. Adjustment of anticipated hours needed for each position based upon the anticipated 
contractor’s schedule. Hours worked by the Service Provider are at the direction of 
the Resident Engineer. 

2. Adjustment of start and completion date.  
3. Based upon recent audit performed by NDOT an overhead rate of 158.44% is being 

used. 
4. Adjustment of personnel that will be provided a cell phone and vehicle.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 02C51AB8-CBEC-47FD-8FD5-A07C00B27C49

Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 

Page 10 of 19



NDOT 
070-069 
Rev 09/14 

5. Adjustment of base rates to be more consistent with industry. 
6. Due to this contract being documented electronically with the FieldManager software 

the Department will provide the necessary equipment for the duration of this project. 
Thus, we were able to eliminate this line item from their original cost proposal.  

7. The total negotiated cost for this agreement, including direct labor, overhead, fee and 
direct expenses will be $2,748,252.58. 

 
Reviewed and Approved: 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Assistant Director 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 02C51AB8-CBEC-47FD-8FD5-A07C00B27C49

William Hoffman 6/18/2015 

Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 

Page 11 of 19

https://trust.docusign.com


Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 

Page 12 of 19



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 

Page 13 of 19



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 

Page 14 of 19



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 

Page 15 of 19



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 

Page 16 of 19



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 

Page 17 of 19



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 

Page 18 of 19

h9070mgs
Typewritten Text
P374 - 15 - 004



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 

Page 19 of 19



MEMORANDUM
June 29, 2015  

TO:   Department of Transportation Board of Directors 
FROM:  Rudy Malfabon, Director  
SUBJECT:      July 6, 2015, Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #7: Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements – Informational Item Only 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

Summary:  

The purpose of this item is to inform the Board of the following: 
• Construction contracts under $5,000,000 awarded May 14, 2015, through June 10, 2015
• Agreements under $300,000 executed May 14, 2015, through June 10, 2015

Any emergency agreements authorized by statute will be presented here as an informational item. 

Background: 

Pursuant to NRS 408.131(5), the Transportation Board has authority to “[e]xecute or approve all 
instruments and documents in the name of the State or Department necessary to carry out the 
provisions of the chapter”. Additionally, the Director may execute all contracts necessary to carry 
out the provisions of Chapter 408 of NRS with the approval of the board, except those construction 
contracts that must be executed by the chairman of the board.  Other contracts or agreements 
not related to the construction, reconstruction, improvement and maintenance of highways must 
be presented to and approved by the Board of Examiners.  This item is intended to inform the 
Board of various matters relating to the Department of Transportation but which do not require 
any formal action by the Board.  

The Department contracts for services relating to the construction, operation and maintenance of 
the State’s multi-modal transportation system. Contracts listed in this item are all low-bid per 
statute and executed by the Governor in his capacity as Board Chairman. The projects are part 
of the STIP document approved by the Board.  In addition, the Department negotiates settlements 
with contractors, property owners, and other parties to resolve disputes. These proposed 
settlements are presented to the Board of Examiners, with the support and advisement of the 
Attorney General’s Office, for approval.  Other matters included in this item would be any 
emergency agreements entered into by the Department during the reporting period. 

1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 

Page 1 of 11



The attached construction contracts, settlements and agreements constitute all that were 
awarded for construction from May 14, 2015, through June 10, 2015, and agreements executed 
by the Department from May 14, 2015, through June 10, 2015.  There were no settlements during 
the reporting period.  
 
Analysis: 
 
These contracts have been executed following the Code of Federal Regulations, Nevada Revised 
Statutes, Nevada Administrative Code, State Administrative Manual, and/or Department policies 
and procedures.  
 
List of Attachments: 
A) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Contracts Awarded - Under $5,000,000, 

May 14, 2015, through June 10, 2015 

B) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Executed Agreements – Under $300,000, 
May 14, 2015, through June 10, 2015 

 
Recommendation for Board Action:   Informational item only 
 
Prepared by: Administrative Services Division 
 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 

Page 2 of 11



Attachment  

A 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 

Page 3 of 11



 
STATE OF NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

CONTRACTS AWARDED - INFORMATIONAL 
May 14, 2015 to June 10, 2015 

 
 
 

1. April 30, 2015, at 1:30 PM the following bids were opened for Contract 3588, Project No. MS-
0031(111) 5 schools in Washoe County, Safe Routes to School program for construction of 
sidewalks, gates, steps and pedestrian signals. 

 Granite Construction Company ................................................................... $491,691.60 
Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc. ................................................................ $498,007.00 
Spanish Springs Construction Inc. .............................................................. $524,444.00 
A & K Earth Movers, Inc. ............................................................................. $542,000.00 
MKD Construction, Inc. ............................................................................... $795,000.00 
 

 Engineer’s Estimate ................................................................................. $424,819.19 
  

The Director awarded the contract May 14, 2015, to Granite Construction Company for 
$491,691.60. 

 
 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 

Page 4 of 11



 

Line Item #1 – Contract 3588 

Project Manager:  Robert Bratzler 

Proceed Date: June 15, 2015 

Estimate Completion: Summer, 2015 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 

Page 5 of 11



Attachment  

B 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 

Page 6 of 11



Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Amend 
No Contractor Purpose Fed

Original 
Agreement 

Amount

Amendment 
Amount Payable Amount Receivable 

Amount Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Dept. Project 
Manager Notes

1 10715 00 CARSON AREA 
METROPOLITAN 
PLANNING 
ORGANIZATION

UNIFIED PLANNING 
WORK PROGRAM

Y 526,316.00       -                    526,316.00       26,316.00        5/29/2015 6/30/2016           - Coop KEVIN VERRE 05-29-15: PROVIDE FUNDING FOR UNIFIED PLANNING 
WORK PROGRAM, CARSON CITY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

2 44412 01 CARSON AREA 
METROPOLITAN 
PLANNING 
ORGANIZATION

PLANNING ACTIVITIES N -                    -                    -                    -                    10/1/2012 9/30/2016 5/26/2015 Coop KEVIN VERRE AMD 1 05-26-15: UPDATE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT 
AND BUDGET (OMB) SUPER CIRCULAR REFERENCE.                                                                                  
10-01-12: NO COST AGREEMENT TO SET FORTH 
GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR THE DUTIES OF THE 
PARTIES FOR THE EXPENDITURE OF THE FEDERAL 
METROPOLITAN PLANNING FUNDS, CARSON CITY. NV 
B/L#: EXEMPT

3 05410 01 WEST WENDOVER 
POLICE 
DEPARTMENT 
(WWPD)

RADIO SYSTEM 
ACCESS FOR WWPD

N -                    -                    -                    -                    3/15/2010 3/15/2020 5/19/2015 Interlocal RICH BROOKS AMD 1 05-19-15: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 06-
30-15 TO 03-15-20, AND TO AMEND LANGUAGE FOR 
AUTOMATIC RENEWAL OF AGREEMENT.                                                                          
03-15-10: NO COST AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE THE 
WEST WENDOVER POLICE DEPARTMENT ACCESS TO 
THE NSRS 800 MHZ RADIO SYSTEM, ELKO COUNTY. 
NV B/L#: EXEMPT

4 08815 00 NEVADA TAHOE 
CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT

MODIFY ROAD RAPID 
ASSESSMENT 
METHOD V2 
PROTOCOLS

N 81,210.00         -                    81,210.00         -                    5/22/2015 12/31/2016           - Interlocal CHARLES 
WOLF

05-22-15: DEVELOP MODIFICATIONS TO EXISTING 
ROAD RAPID ASSESSMENT METHOD FIELD 
PROTOCOLS TO MAXIMIZE THE SAFETY OF FIELD 
PERSONNEL AND REDUCE COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH 
RAPID ASSESSMENT METHOD OBSERVATIONS BY 
MINIMIZING THE NEED FOR TRAFFIC CONTROL 
ASSISTANCE ON HIGH SPEED AND HIGH VOLUME 
ROADWAYS, WASHOE COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

5 31015 00 WASHOE COUNTY 
SCHOOL DISTRICT

FUND SAFE ROUTES 
TO SCHOOL

Y 120,000.00       -                    120,000.00       6,000.00           6/8/2015 6/30/2016           - Interlocal TIM ROWE 06-08-15: FUND WASHOE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
REGIONAL SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL COORDINATOR 
SERVICES AND PROGRAM (25 ELEMENTARY 
SCHOOLS AND 10 MIDDLE SCHOOLS) FOR ONE 
ADDITIONAL YEAR, WASHOE COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
EXEMPT

6 30915 00 STREETCAR PO-
BOYS LLC

TENANT-OWNED 
IMPROVEMENTS FOR 
PARCEL I-015-CL-
041.236

Y 19,350.00         -                    19,350.00         -                    5/18/2015 12/31/2019           - Acquisition TINA KRAMER 05-20-15: PURCHASE TENANT-OWNED 
IMPROVEMENTS FOR PARCEL I-015-CL-041.236 FOR 
PROJECT NEON DESIGN BUILD, CLARK COUNTY. NV 
B/L#: NV20131586453

7 31415 00 SCANNELL 
PROPERTIES #32 
LLC

TENANT-OWNED 
IMPROVEMENTS FOR 
PARCELS S650-WA-
019.599 & 599TE

N 114,552.00       -                    114,552.00       -                    5/20/2015 5/30/2017           - Acquisition TINA KRAMER 05-20-15: PURCHASE OF TENANT-OWNED 
IMPROVEMENTS FOR NEVADA PARCELS S-650-WA-
019.599 AND S-650-WA-019.599TE FOR THE 
MCCARRAN WIDENING PROJECT, WASHOE COUNTY. 
NV B/L#: NV20041010426

8 31615 00 TIM WEAVER INC PARCEL I-015-CL-
041.790

Y 137,000.00       -                    137,000.00       -                    5/19/2015 5/30/2019           - Acquisition TINA KRAMER 05-20-15: ACQUISITION OF NEVADA PARCEL I-015-CL-
041.790 FOR PROJECT NEON DESIGN BUILD, CLARK 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV19951135191

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Informational
May 14, 2015, through June 10, 2015

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 

Page 7 of 11



9 31715 00 COTTONWOOD 
SPRINGS LLC

GIFT OF EASEMENT N -                    -                    -                    -                    5/20/2015 5/30/2019           - Acquisition TINA KRAMER 05-20-15: NO COST PUBLIC HIGHWAY AGREEMENT 
GIFT OF EASEMENT FOR PARCEL S-439-LY-003.794 PE 
AND S-439-LY-004.980 PE FOR THE USA PARKWAY 
DESIGN BUILD PROJECT, LYON COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
EXEMPT

10 31815 00 RAMSEY LLC GIFT OF EASEMENT N -                    -                    -                    -                    5/20/2015 5/30/2019           - Acquisition TINA KRAMER 05-20-15: NO COST PUBLIC HIGHWAY AGREEMENT 
GIFT OF EASEMENT FOR PARCELS S-439-LY-006.530 
PE AND S-439-LY-007.845 PE FOR THE USA PARKWAY 
DESIGN BUILD PROJECT, LYON COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
EXEMPT

11 31915 00 MICHELLE 
DOWELL

PARCEL I-015-CL-
042.092

Y 260,000.00       -                    260,000.00       -                    5/19/2015 5/30/2019           - Acquisition TINA KRAMER 05-19-15: ACQUISITION OF NEVADA PARCEL I-015-CL-
042.092 FOR PROJECT NEON DESIGN BUILD, CLARK 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

12 32315 00 THE LEH LIVING 
TRUST

PARCEL I-015-CL-
041.811

Y 147,000.00       -                    147,000.00       -                    5/20/2015 5/30/2019           - Acquisition TINA KRAMER 05-20-15: ACQUISITION OF NEVADA PARCEL I-015-CL-
041.811 FOR PROJECT NEON DESIGN BUILD, CLARK 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

13 32415 00 HAWLEY FAMILY 
TRUST

PARCEL I-015-CL-
041.800

Y 157,000.00       -                    157,000.00       -                    5/20/2015 5/30/2019           - Acquisition TINA KRAMER 05-20-15: ACQUISITION OF NEVADA PARCEL I-015-CL-
041.800 FOR PROJECT NEON DESIGN BUILD, CLARK 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

14 32515 00 ISAAC PINTO PARCEL I-015-CL-
041.823

Y 180,000.00       -                    180,000.00       -                    5/20/2015 5/30/2019           - Acquisition TINA KRAMER 05-20-15: ACQUISITION OF NEVADA PARCEL I-015-CL-
041.823 FOR PROJECT NEON DESIGN BUILD, CLARK 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

15 05915 00 UNION PACIFIC 
RAILROAD 
COMPANY

PRELIMINARY 
ENGINEERING 
SERVICES

Y 25,000.00         -                    25,000.00         -                    5/20/2015 1/31/2019           - Facility TINA KRAMER 05-20-15: PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING SERVICE FOR 
THE I-15 INTERCHANGE WITH SAHARA AVENUE FOR 
PROJECT NEON DESIGN BUILD, CLARK COUNTY. NV 
B/L#: NV19691003146

16 30815 00 SOUTHWEST GAS 
CORPORATION

PRELIMINARY 
ENGINEERING 
SERVICES

Y 20,714.64         -                    20,714.64         -                    5/19/2015 5/31/2019           - Facility TINA KRAMER 05-19-15: PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING SERVICE 
CONNECTORS, ACCESS, AND EXIT RAMPS FOR 
CHARLESTON BLVD INTERCHANGE 
RECONSTRUCTION FOR PROJECT NEON DESIGN 
BUILD, CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV19571000091

17 32815 00 NV ENERGY PRELIMINARY 
ENGINEERING 
SERVICES

N 10,000.00         -                    10,000.00         -                    5/20/2015 5/19/2017           - Facility TINA KRAMER 05-20-15: PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR 
TRANSMISSION LINE RELOCATION FOR THE USA 
PARKWAY DESIGN BUILD PROJECT, LYON AND 
STOREY COUNTIES. NV B/L#: NV19831015840

18 33015 00 NV ENERGY MANHOLE COVERS 
NUGGET AVENUE

N 2,400.00           -                    2,400.00           -                    5/26/2015 5/30/2016           - Facility TINA KRAMER 05-26-15: ADJUST THREE MANHOLE COVERS ON 
NUGGET AVENUE IN SPARKS, WASHOE COUNTY. NV 
B/L#: NV19831015840

19 33115 00 TRUCKEE 
MEADOWS WATER 
AUTHORITY

MANHOLE COVERS 
NUGGET AVENUE

N 1,600.00           -                    1,600.00           -                    5/26/2015 5/30/2016           - Facility TINA KRAMER 05-26-15: ADJUSTMENT OF TWO MANHOLE COVERS 
ON NUGGET AVENUE IN SPARKS, WASHOE COUNTY. 
NV B/L#: NV20121515011

20 32915 00 TRUCKEE 
MEADOWS WATER 
AUTHORITY

PARCEL U-395-WA-
027.074

N 42,745.00         -                    -                    42,745.00        5/22/2015 5/30/2016           - Property 
Sale

TINA KRAMER 05-28-15: DEPARTMENTS SALE OF PARCEL U-395-WA-
027.074 SUR 13-12, WASHOE COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
NV20121515011

21 14515 00 WILSON 
BROTHERS SALES

CONSTRUCTION 
OUTSIDE ROW

N -                    -                    -                    -                    5/22/2015 1/31/2018           - ROW 
Access

TINA KRAMER 05-22-15: NO COST AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION 
OUTSIDE OF RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR GLENDALE AVENUE 
PROJECT, WASHOE COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV20111617123

22 31515 00 MANASO 
INVESTMENTS LLC

CONSTRUCTION 
OUTSIDE ROW

N -                    -                    -                    -                    5/20/2015 1/31/2018           - ROW 
Access

TINA KRAMER 05-20-15: NO COST AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION 
OUTSIDE OF RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR CRAIG ROAD 
PROJECT, WASHOE COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV20011093955

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 

Page 8 of 11



23 33915 00 ELKO LAND AND 
LIVESTOCK CO

CONSTRUCTION 
OUTSIDE ROW

Y -                    -                    -                    -                    6/3/2015 12/31/2017           - ROW 
Access

TINA KRAMER 06-03-15: NO COST AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION 
OUTSIDE RIGHT-OF-WAY TO RECONSTRUCT A 
DRIVEWAY, ELKO COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV19781007985

24 39413 00 THE WHITING-
TURNER 
CONTRACTING 
COMPANY 

CONSTRUCTION 
MANAGER AT RISK

N        289,911.00 537,000.00              826,911.00 -                    4/11/2014 7/6/2015 Service 
Provider

LYNNETTE 
RUSSELL

AMD 1 04-11-14: INCREASE AUTHORITY $537,000.00 
FROM $289,911.00 TO $826, 911.00 FOR ADDITIONAL 
SERVICES NOT CONTEMPLATED OR DESCRIBED IN 
ORIGINAL SCOPE OF SERVICES INCLUDING TWO 
ADDITIONAL OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION 
COST (OPCC) AND GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE 
PROCESSES, PREPARATION OF A TRAFFIC 
MANAGEMENT PLAN, PREPARATION AND 
IMPLEMENTATION OF A PUBLIC OUTREACH PLAN, 
AND SUBSURFACE UTILITY ENGINEERING.                                                                                          
06-08-15: PRE-CONSTRUCTION AND CONSTRUCTION 
SERVICES FOR THE PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE 
ESCALATOR PROJECT LOCATED AT THE TROPICANA 
AVENUE AND LAS VEGAS BOULEVARD SOUTH 
INTERSECTION. SERVICES INCLUDE IMPROVING 
EXISTING PEDESTRIAN BRIDGES AND ELEVATORS 
AND REPLACE 16 EXISTING INTERNAL/BUILDING 
ESCALATORS WITH NEW AMERICAN PUBLIC 
TRANSPORTATION ASSOCIATION-COMPLIANT, 
EXTERNAL TYPE, TRANSIT GRADE DESIGN UNITS. 
CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV19821000674-R                                                          
NOTE: THIS AGREEMENT IS FUNDED WITH 100% 
LOCAL (LVCVA) FUNDS AND PER THE 
TRANSPORTATION BOARD REPORTING PROCESS 
APPROVED BY THE BOARD AT THE JULY 11, 2011, 
BOARD MEETING, IS AN INFORMATIONAL ITEM. 

25 29113 02 CHAPMAN LAW 
FIRM

AD AMERICA Y 200,000.00       -                    450,000.00       -                    7/25/2013 7/30/2017 6/1/2015 Service 
Provider

DENNIS 
GALLAGHER

AMD 2 06-01-15: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 07-
30-15 TO 07-30-17 TO ALLOW TIME TO RESOLVE 
THESE LEGAL MATTERS.                                                                                                        
AMD 1 04-28-14: INCREASE AUTHORITY BY $250,000.00 
FROM $200,000.00 TO $450,000.00 TO CONTINUE 
LITIGATION.                                                                                                            
07-25-13: LEGAL REPRESENTATION BY CHAPMAN LAW 
FIRM RE AD AMERICA INVERSE CONDEMNATION 
CASE FOR PROJECT NEON DESIGN BUILD PROJECT, 
CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV20011462722-S

26 02215 00 THE NARWHAL 
GROUP

ROAD WEATHER 
IINFORMATION SITE 
(RWIS) 
PREVENTATIVE 
MAINTENANCE

N 290,000.00       -                    290,000.00       -                    5/22/2015 12/31/2015           - Service 
Provider

JON DICKINSON 05-22-15: ROAD WEATHER INFORMATION SITE 
PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE AND SENSOR 
REPLACEMENT SUPPORT, STATEWIDE. NV B/L#: 
NV20131182395-R

27 04812 02 GML ARCHITECTS MAINTENANCE 
STATION VEHICLE 
STORAGE BAYS

N 230,000.00       -                    241,382.00       -                    8/16/2012 12/31/2015 6/9/2015 Service 
Provider

DON TWICHELL AMD 2 06-09-15: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 06-
30-15 TO 12-31-15 DUE TO CONSTRUCTION DELAY.                                                                                                         
AMD 1 02-25-14: INCREASE AUTHORITY BY $11,382.00 
FROM $230,000.00 TO $241,382.00, AND EXTEND 
TERMINATION DATE FROM 12-31-14 TO 06-30-15 DUE 
TO SEPARATION OF PROJECT INTO TWO PROJECTS.                                                                                                       
08-16-12: ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES FOR VEHICLE 
STORAGE BAY EXTENSIONS AT MONTGOMERY PASS 
AND FALLON MAINTENANCE STATIONS, AND FOR A 
VEHICLE STORAGE BUILDING AT THE FERNLEY 
MAINTENANCE STATION, MINERAL AND CHURCHILL 
COUNTIES. NV B/L#: NV19981053945-R

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 

Page 9 of 11



28 06915 01 GRANITE 
CONSTRUCTION 
COMPANY

SOUNDWALL ON I-515 N 204,287.00       16,802.66         221,089.66       -                    2/19/2015 6/30/2016 5/20/2015 Service 
Provider

WENDY 
MERCADO-
MONTES

AMD 1 05-20-15: TO INCREASE AUTHORITY $16,802.66 
FROM $204,287.00 TO $221,089.66 FOR REPAIR OF 
DAMAGES DISCOVERED AFTER REMOVAL OF 
SOUNDWALL AND SECTION OF DECK CAUSED BY A 
VEHICLE ACCIDENT. NDOT WILL REQUEST 
REIMBURSEMENT FROM RESPONSIBLE PARTIES.                                                                                                                                                  
02-19-15: Q1-018-15: RECONSTRUCTION OF 
SOUNDWALL AND BARRIER RAIL ON I-515, CLARK 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV19631001612-Q

29 17413 02 GEORGE C 
GARCIA INC

STATE VS AD 
AMERICA

Y 25,000.00         -                    80,000.00         -                    5/22/2013 5/31/2016 5/26/2015 Service 
Provider

RON DIETRICH AMD 2 05-26-15: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 05-
31-15 TO 05-31-16 FOR REQUIRED ADDITIONAL 
BILLBOARD RELATED REAL ESTATE PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT ANALYSIS SERVICES.                                                                                                      
AMD 1 09-09-13: INCREASE AUTHORITY $55,000.00 
FROM $25,000.00 TO $80,000.00 FOR RELOCATION OF 
A BILLBOARD BUSINESS AND STRUCTURE.                                                                                                       
05-22-13: REAL ESTATE PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT ANALYSIS AND EXPERT WITNESS 
TESTIMONY, STATE VS AD AMERICA, CLARK COUNTY. 
NV B/L#: NV19951166962-S

30 21115 00 INTERNATIONAL 
CYBERNETICS 
CORP

INSTALL EQUIPMENT 
IN NDOT VEHICLE

Y 6,588.00           -                    6,588.00           -                    6/8/2015 12/31/2015           - Service 
Provider

LAWRIE BLACK 06-08-15: ONSITE INSTALLATION, TESTING AND 
STARTUP OF ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT IN EXISTING 
NDOT VEHICLE, CARSON CITY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

31 27715 00 THE TRUESDELL 
CORPORATION

BRIDGE REPAIR US 
395

N 218,218.00       -                    218,218.00       -                    5/20/2015 12/31/2016           - Service 
Provider

MARLENE 
REVERA

05-20-15: Q2-011-15: SERVICES TO REPAIR SPALLS, 
DELAMINATIONS, CLEAN EXPANSION JOINTS, 
OVERLAY BRIDGE DECK, ETC ON US-395 AT MP CC 
4.92, CARSON CITY. NV B/L#: NV19921043918-Q

32 28715 00 ECO GREEN 
MAINTENANCE

MAINTENANCE 
STATION JANITORIAL

N 4,575.00           -                    4,575.00           -                    5/20/2015 2/28/2017           - Service 
Provider

SANDY 
SPENCER

05-20-15: Q3-015-15: JANITORIAL SERVICES TO CLEAN 
MAINTENANCE STATION HOUSES AFTER RESIDENT 
MOVE-OUT, HUMBOLDT COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
NV20111362322-Q

33 28915 00 Q&D 
CONSTRUCTION

SPALL REPAIR US395 N 229,000.00       -                    229,000.00       -                    5/18/2015 12/31/2016           - Service 
Provider

MARLENE 
REVERA

05-18-15: Q2-013-15: SERVICES FOR SPALL REPAIR, 
DELAMINATION AND OVERLAY ON US395 MP CC6.23, 
CARSON CITY. NV B/L#: NV19671000639-Q

34 29215 00 RICKS FLOOR 
COVERING

REPLACE CARPET N 34,995.00         -                    34,995.00         -                    6/8/2015 12/31/2015           - Service 
Provider

CHAVONE 
GABLE

06-09-15: REMOVE AND REPLACE CARPET SQUARES 
AT HEADQUARTERS BUILDING, CARSON CITY. NV 
B/L#: NV20001249736-S

35 29615 00 MISSION LINEN 
SUPPLY

LAUNDRY TONOPAH N 57,498.18         -                    57,498.18         -                    5/26/2015 9/30/2018           - Service 
Provider

PAULINE 
BEIGEL

05-26-15: Q1-017-15: LAUNDRY SERVICES FOR THE 
TONOPAH SUB-DISTRICT AND OUTLYING 
MAINTENANCE STATION EMPLOYEES, NYE COUNTY. 
NV B/L#: NV20121451751-Q

36 31315 00 DONNA SUE 
MASON, CPL

ANALYSIS AND 
CONSULTATION 
SERVICES

Y 15,000.00         -                    15,000.00         -                    5/20/2015 5/1/2016           - Service 
Provider

TINA KRAMER 05-20-15: SURFACE LAND AND MINERAL TITLE 
ANALYSIS AND CONSULTATION SERVICES, STOREY 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV20131282255-S

37 32015 00 REMINGTON 
CONSTRUCTION 
COMPANY

SLOPE SCALING US 
50

N 287,777.00       -                    287,777.00       -                    5/28/2015 1/31/2016           - Service 
Provider

TRENT 
AVERETT

05-28-15: Q3-017-15: TO PROVIDE SLOPE SCALING ON 
US 50 AT VARIOUS LOCATIONS NEAR ELY, ELKO 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV20071516052-Q

38 32115 00 MCNEIL'S 
CLEANING 
SERVICES

MT ROSE REST AREA N 16,560.00         -                    16,560.00         -                    5/20/2015 6/30/2016           - Service 
Provider

MARLENE 
REVERA

5-20-15: Q2-026-15: JANITORIAL AND MAINTENANCE 
SERVICES FOR THE MT ROSE REST AREA, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV20061269584-Q

39 32215 00 TITAN ELECTRICAL 
CONTRACTING

REPLACE SIGN AT 
GARSON STATION

N 191,710.60       -                    191,710.60       -                    5/26/2015 12/31/2015           - Service 
Provider

ROD SCHILLING 5-26-15: Q0-016-15: REPLACE SIGN AT THE GARSON 
TRUCK CHECK STATION TO INCREASE TRUCK DRIVER 
EFFICIENCY AND MAXIMIZE VISIBILITY, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV20071408571-Q

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 

Page 10 of 11



40 33315 00 SIERRA NEVADA 
CONSTRUCTION

NDOT HANGER LOT 
SLURRY SEAL

N 28,007.00         -                    28,007.00         -                    6/5/2015 12/31/2015           - Service 
Provider

GREG 
MINDRUM

06-05-15: Q0-018-15 TO PROVIDE SLURRY SEAL AT 
THE NDOT HANGAR LOT, CARSON CITY. NV B/L#: 
NV19881009372-Q

41 33712 01 STANTEC 
CONSULTING 
SERVICES

LANDSCAPE DESIGN 
FOR I-580

N 294,882.00       4,900.00           299,782.00       -                    4/26/2013 6/30/2017 6/9/2015 Service 
Provider

PAUL SHOCK AMD 1 06-09-15: INCREASE AUTHORITY BY $4,900.00 
FROM $294,882.00 TO $299,782.00 FOR ADDITIONAL 
SCOPE ITEMS, AND EXTEND TERMINATION DATE 
FROM 06-30-15 TO 06-30-17 DUE TO DELAYS BY 
DEPARTMENT IN PROVIDING PROJECT BASE 
MAPPING, SURVEY, AND ROADWAY DELINEATION TO 
THE DESIGN CONSULTANT.                                                                         
04-26-13: LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE DESIGN AND 
CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT SERVICES FOR THE I-580 
INTERCHANGES FROM SOUTH VIRGINIA TO NEIL 
ROAD IN RENO, WASHOE COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
NV20101021081-R

42 34114 01 PARSONS 
BRINCKERHOFF

PROJECT SCOPING I-
15 NORTH

Y 1,963,133.00    95,534.00         2,058,667.00    -                    2/12/2015 3/31/2016 5/29/2015 Service 
Provider

DWAYNE 
WILKINSON

AMD 1 05-29-15: INCREASE AUTHORITY $95,534.00 
FROM $1,963,133.00 TO $2,058,667.00 DUE TO THE 
NEED FOR ADDITIONAL TRAFFIC ENGINEERING 
SERVICES.                                                                                           
02-12-15: PROJECT SCOPING AND PROJECT 
MANAGEMENT ASSISTANCE FOR THE I-15 NORTH, 
PHASE 4, SYSTEM TO SYSTEM INTERCHANGE, CLARK 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV19911025871-R

43 51114 01 SPILLMAN 
TECHNOLOGIES

CAD SYSTEM N 442,000.00       -                    442,000.00       -                    12/23/2014 6/30/2016 5/18/2015 Service 
Provider

ERIC 
PENNINGTON

AMD 1 05-18-15: SCOPE AMENDED BY DELETING THE 
ORIGINAL ATTACHMENT "A" AND REPLACING IT WITH 
A NEW ATTACHMENT "A" THAT ONLY IDENTIFIES 
NDOT AS THE RECIPIENT OF THE CAD SOLUTION 
USAGE.                                                                                                                                                                    
12-23-14: IMPLEMENTATION OF THE SPILLMAN CAD 
SYSTEM TO BE USED BY EACH DISTRICT'S ROADWAY 
OPERATIONS CENTER, STATEWIDE. NV B/L#: 
NV20101073893-S

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 

Page 11 of 11









































































































































































MEMORANDUM 
 June 23, 2015   
TO: Department of Transportation Board of Directors 

FROM:  Rudy Malfabon, Director 

SUBJECT: July 6, 2015 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 

Item #11: Old Business  
____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Summary: 
 
This item is to provide follow up and ongoing information brought up at previous Board 
Meetings. 
 
Analysis: 
 
a. Report of Outside Counsel Costs on Open Matters - Informational item only. 

 
 Please see Attachment A. 
 
b. Monthly Litigation Report - Informational item only. 

 
 Please see Attachment B. 

 
c. Fatality Report dated June 23, 2015 - Informational item only. 
 
 Please see Attachment C. 
 
List of Attachments: 
 
a. Report of Outside Counsel Costs on Open Matters - Informational item only. 
b. Monthly Litigation Report - Informational item only. 
c. Fatality Report dated June 23, 2015 - Informational item only. 
 
Recommendation for Board Action: 
 
Informational item only. 
 
 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 

Fax:      (775) 888-7201 



Contract Period Contract and Amendment Date

Nossaman, LLP Project Neon  3/11/13 - 12/31/17 3/11/13 1,400,000.00$                

Legal and Financial Planning  Amendment #1 1/14/14 2,000,000.00$                

NDOT Agmt No. P014-13-015 3,400,000.00$                3,400,000.00$             $                 333,986.58 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Robarts 1981 Decedents Trust

 8th JD - 12-665880-C

Project Neon - Las Vegas

10/23/12 - 9/30/16

Amendment #1

10/23/12

9/12/14

 475725

Extension of Time 

NDOT Agmt No. P452-12-004  $              475,725.00  $                 303,876.04 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. MLK-ALTA

 8th JD - A-12-658642-C

Project Neon - Las Vegas

 1/14/13 - 1/14/16 1/14/13  $                   455,525.00 

NDOT Agmt No. P508-12-004  $              455,525.00  $                 231,982.54 

Laura FitzSimmons, Esq. Condemnation Litigation Consultation 12/16/12 - 12/30/17 12/16/12  $                   300,000.00 

NDOT Agmt No. P510-12-004  Amendment #1 8/12/13  $                   850,000.00 

 Amendment #2 1/22/14  $                   750,000.00 

 Amendment #3 5/12/14  $                   800,000.00 

 $           2,700,000.00  $                 563,366.06 

Lemons, Grundy, Eisenberg NDOT vs. Ad America (Appeal)

 8th JD  - A-11-640157-C

Project Neon - Las Vegas

1/22/13 - 1/31/16 1/22/13 $205,250.00 

NDOT Agmt No. P037-13-004  Amendment #1 1/22/15  Extension of Time  $              205,250.00  $                   41,197.82 

Sylvester & Polednak, Ltd. NDOT vs. Wykoff

8th JD - A-12-656578-C

Warms Springs Project - Las Vegas

 2/27/13 - 1/31/17 2/27/13 $275,000.00 

NDOT Agmt No. P071-13-004  Amendment #1 1/23/15  Extension of Time 

 Amendment #2 5/13/15  $                   150,000.00  $              425,000.00  $                   82,259.55 

Sylvester & Polednak, Ltd. NDOT vs. K & L Dirt

8th JD - A-12-666050-C

Boulder City Bypass Project

 2/27/13 - 1/31/17 2/27/13  $                   275,000.00 

NDOT Agmt No. P073-13-004  Amendment #1 1/23/15  Extension of Time  $              275,000.00  $                 153,242.20 

Sylvester & Polednak, Ltd. NDOT vs.  I-15 & Cactus

Cactus Project - Las Vegas

8th JD - A-12-664403-C

 2/27/13 - 2/28/17 2/27/13  $                   200,000.00 

NDOT Agmt No. P074-13-004  Amendment #1 2/17/15  Extension of Time  $              200,000.00  $                   39,093.73 

 ** Varela, Lee, Metz & Guarina, 

LLP - Novation Agreement 

2/28/14 from Watt, Tieder, Hoffar 

& Fitzgerald 

Pacific Coast Steel vs. NDOT

K3292 - I-580

2nd JD CV12-02093

 4/30/13 - 4/30/17 4/30/13  $                   275,000.00 

NDOT Agmt No. P160-13-004  $              275,000.00  $                   59,870.66 

Sylvester & Polednak Fitzhouse Enterprises

(acquired title as Westcare)

8th JD - A-13-660564-C

Project Neon - Las Vegas

 5/31/13 - 5/31/15 5/31/13 290,000.00$                   

NDOT Agmt No. P201-13-004 290,000.00$                $                 160,050.56 

Snell & Wilmer Meadow Valley Public Records, K3389  7/18/13 - 7/30/15 7/18/13  $                     30,000.00 

 Amendment #1 7/29/14  $                     50,000.00 

NDOT Agmt No. P273-13-004  Amendment #2 12/9/14 90,000.00$                     170,000.00$                $                        582.14 

Kemp, Jones, Coulthard Nassiri vs. NDOT

8th JD A672841

 7/17/13 - 2/28/17 7/17/13 280,000.00$                   

NDOT Agmt No. P290-13-004  Amendment #1 2/12/15 475,000.00$                   755,000.00$                $                        313.54 

Chapman Law Firm Ad America vs. NDOT (Project Neon)

8th JD A640157

 7/25/13 - 7/30/15 7/25/13 200,000.00$                   

NDOT Agmt No. P291-13-004  Amendment #1 4/28/14 250,000.00$                   

450,000.00$                $                   85,919.59 

Chapman Law Firm Ad America vs. NDOT (South Point)

8th JD A-11-653502-C

 7/25/13 - 7/30/15 7/25/13 70,000.00$                     

NDOT Agmt No. P293-13-004 70,000.00$                  $                          89.66 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. LGC, 231, LLC

Project Neon

 12/20/13 - 12/15/15 12/20/13 453,650.00$                   

8th JD 

NDOT Agmt No. P561-13-004 453,650.00$                $                 275,553.77 

OPEN NDOT - OUTSIDE COUNSEL CONTRACTS AS OF JUNE 19, 2015

Vendor Case/Project Name
Contract and Amendment 

Amount

Total Contract 

Authority

Contract Authority 

Remaining

Page 1 of 2

Attachment A



Contract Period Contract and Amendment Date

OPEN NDOT - OUTSIDE COUNSEL CONTRACTS AS OF JUNE 19, 2015

Vendor Case/Project Name
Contract and Amendment 

Amount

Total Contract 

Authority

Contract Authority 

Remaining

Laura FitzSimmons, Esq. Risk Management Analysis for Project NEON 1/13/14 - 12/31/17 1/13/14  $                   900,000.00 

Costs for Risk Management Analysis  Amendment #1 8/21/14 310,000.00$                   

NDOT Agmt No. P006-14-004  Amendment #2 4/21/15 250,000.00$                   1,460,000.00$             $                 273,403.16 

Chapman Law Firm McCarran Widening  5/14/14 - 5/30/16 5/14/14 200,000.00$                   

2nd JD - Various Temporary Easements

NDOT Agmt No. P142-14-004 200,000.00$                $                 104,796.36 

*** Downey Brand, LLP Legal Support for utility matters relating to 5/14/14 - 5/30/16 5/14/14  $                   250,000.00 

Novation Agreement 2/12/15 Project Neon and Boulder City Bypass

from Armstrong Teasdale, LLP NDOT Agmt No. P210-14-004 250,000.00$                $                 245,570.00 

Sylvester & Polednak First Presbyterian Church vs. NDOT 7/17/14 - 7/30/16 7/17/14  $                   280,000.00 

8th JD A-14-698783-C

Project Neon

NDOT Agmt No. P327-14-004 280,000.00$                $                 242,037.84 ****

Carbajal & McNutt, LLP Las Vegas Golf & Country Club 9/8/14 - 8/30/15 9/8/14  $                   375,000.00 

8th JD A-14-705477-C

Project Neon

NDOT Agmt No. P362-14-004 375,000.00$                $                 362,002.79 

Kemp, Jones & Coulthard Walker Furniture  10/13/14 - 11/30/16 10/13/14 350,000.00$                   

Project Neon

NDOT Agmt No. P431-14-004 350,000.00$                $                 225,495.26 

Lambrose Brown Grant Properties  10/14/14 - 10/30/16 10/14/14 275,000.00$                   

Project Neon

NDOT Agmt No. P433-14-004 275,000.00$                $                 257,362.79 

Lambrose Brown Sharples  10/16/14 - 10/30/16 10/16/14 275,000.00$                   

Project Neon

NDOT Agmt No. P434-14-004 275,000.00$                $                 266,093.00 

Laura FitzSimmons, Esq. Project Neon  11/10/14 - 11/30/15 11/10/14 600,000.00$                   

Eminent Domain Actions

NDOT Agmt No. P480-14-004 600,000.00$                $                 484,720.00 

Varela, Lee, Metz & Guarino Sequoia Electric K3409  10/16/14 - 10/30/16 10/16/14 250,000.00$                   

NDOT Agmt No. P526-14-004 250,000.00$                $                 250,000.00 

Lambrose Brown Paralegal Services - Project Neon 11/20/14 - 11/30/16 11/20/14 250,000.00$                   

NDOT Agmt No. P547-14-004  Amendment #1 2/12/15 250,000.00$                $                 174,107.28 

* BH Consulting Agreement Management assistance, policy recommendations, 

negotiation support and advice regarding NEXTEL and 

Re-channeling of NDOT's 800 Mhz frequencies.

6/30/12 - 6/30/16 6/30/12  $                     77,750.00 

 $                77,750.00  $                   76,340.00 

*  Pass Through - Federally mandated 800 MHz rebanding project fully reimbursed by Sprint Nextel.

** The firm of Varela, Lee, Metz & Guarina, LLP took over representing the Department in the matter of Pacific Coast Steel vs. NDOT Case as of 2/28/14 from the firm of Watt, Tieder, Hoffar & Fitzgerald.

*** The firm of Downey Brand, LLP took over representing the Department on 2/12/15 in utility matters relating to condemnation actions and acquisitions from the firm of Armstrong Teasdale, LLP. 

**** Error in prior report.  Corrected in this report.

Contracts Closed Since Last Report:

None

Page 2 of 2

Attachment A



Monthly Litigation Report to the Nevada Department of Transportation - June 19, 2015

Fees Costs Total
Condemnations

NDOT vs. Chavez, Dawn R. Eminent domain - McCarran Widening * 74,916.25$          20,287.39$        95,203.64$            

NDOT vs. Custom Landco. (Walker Furniture) Eiminent domain - Project Neon 118,671.16$        5,833.58$          124,504.74$          

NDOT vs. Fitzhouse/Westcare Eminent domain  - Project Neon 88,350.00$          41,599.44$        129,949.44$          

NDOT vs. Hackler, Connie L. Eminent domain - McCarran Widening * 74,916.25$          20,287.39$        95,203.64$            

NDOT vs. I-15 and Cactus, LLC Eminent domain - I-15 Cactus 140,625.00$        20,281.27$        160,906.27$          

NDOT vs. Jensen, Allan B. Eminent domain - McCarran Widening * 74,916.25$          20,287.39$        95,203.64$            

NDOT vs. K & L Dirt Company, LLC Eminent domain - Boulder City Bypass 105,925.00$        15,832.80$        121,757.80$          

NDOT vs. LGC 231, LLC - (Holsom Lofts) Eminent domain - Project Neon 121,902.50$        56,193.73$        178,096.23$          

NDOT vs. Las Vegas Golf & Country Club Eminent domain - Project Neon 11,312.75$          1,684.46$          12,997.21$            

NDOT vs. Loch Lomond Trust, et al. Eminent domain - Project Neon -$                     -$                   -$                       

NDOT vs. Manaois, Randy M. Eminent domain - McCarran Widening * 74,916.25$          20,287.39$        95,203.64$            

NDOT vs. Marsh, Nita, et al. Eminent domain - McCarran Widening * 74,916.25$          20,287.39$        95,203.64$            

NDOT vs. Miller, Bruce B. Eminent domain - McCarran Widening * 74,916.25$          20,287.39$        95,203.64$            

NDOT vs. MLK-ALTA Eminent domain - Project Neon 193,340.95$        30,201.51$        223,542.46$          

NDOT vs. Sharples, John; Sharples, Bonnie Eminent domain - Project Neon 8,907.00$            -$                   8,907.00$              

NDOT vs. Stanford Crossing, LLC Eminent domain - McCarran Widening * 74,916.25$          20,287.39$        95,203.64$            

NDOT vs. Turner, Ronald Lee Eminent domain - McCarran Widening * 74,916.25$          20,287.39$        95,203.64$            

NDOT vs. Wykoff Newberg Corporation Eminent domain - I-15 and Warm Springs 303,200.78$        39,539.67$        342,740.45$          

Inverse Condemnations

AD America, Inc. vs. NDOT (NEON) Inverse condemnation - Project Neon 513,748.06$        113,858.70$      627,606.76$          

AD America, Inc. vs. NDOT (NEON-Silver Ave.) Inverse condemnation - Project Neon

AD America, Inc. vs. NDOT (South Point) Inverse condemnation - South Point 61,929.00$          4,981.34$          66,910.34$            

Eastman, Brandon vs. NDOT Inverse condemnation - Project Neon

First  Presbyterian Church of LV vs. NDOT Inverse condemnation - Project Neon 35,325.00$          2,637.16$          37,962.16$            **
Nassiri, Fred vs. NDOT Inverse condemnation 609,610.49$        136,803.00$      746,413.49$          

Robarts 1981 Decedents Trust vs. NDOT Inverse Condemnation - Project Neon 161,952.33$        9,896.63$          171,848.96$          

Cases Closed and Removed from Last Report:

None

* McCarran Widening fees and costs are under one contract.

** Error in prior report.  Corrected in this report.

Case Name
J
u
r

Nature of Case
Outside Counsel to Date

Page 1

Attachment B



Monthly Litigation Report to the Nevada Department of Transportation - June 19, 2015

Fees Costs Total
Torts

Ariza, Ana, et al. vs. Wulfenstein, NDOT 5th JD CV 35154Plaintiff alleges wrongful death

Discount Tire Company vs. NDOT; Fisher 8th JD A-13-682536-CPlaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury

Francois, John A. vs. NDOT 6th JD CV13 11631Plaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury

Harris Farm, Inc. vs NDOT 2nd JD CV13-02127Plaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury

Jorgenson & Koka, LLP 8th JD A-13-686840-BPlaintiff alleges negligence causing property damage

Knowlton, Jane vs. NDOT Incline JC ICV14-00033Plaintiff alleges personal injury and property damage

NDOT vs. Tamietti 1st JD CV19994NDOT seeks injunct. relief to prevent closing access

Oneal, Brenda vs. NDOT 8th JD A-14-698933-CPlaintiff alleges negligence causing personal injury

Pyjas, Estate of Robert Charles 8th JD A-15-716528-CPlaintiff alleges wrongful death

Richard, Eboni vs. NDOT 8th JD A-14-698851Plaintiff alleges negligence causing personal injury

Windrum, Richard & Michelle vs. NDOT 8th JD A13-691475-CPlaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury

Woods, Willaim and Elaine 2nd JD CV14-01148Plaintiff alleges wrongful death

Zito, Adam vs. NDOT 8th JD A-13-686954-CPlaintiff alleges negligence and property damage

Contract Disputes

None currently in litigation

Miscellaneous

Nevada Power Co., Inc. vs. KAG Development; NDOT 8th JD A-15-712132-CPlaintiff seeking quiet title

Road & Highway Builders vs. NDOT 1st JD 15 OC 00032 1BPetition for Judicial Review of Prevailing Wage

Personnel Matters

Akinola, Ayodele vs. State, NDOT USDC 3:11-cv-00681Plaintiff alleges 14th Amendment  - discrimination

Cerini, Cheri 1st JD 140C 001431B;  CC-02-14-CC (Admin ); CC-03-14-CC (Admin)Petition for Judicial Review

Cases Removed from Last Report:

None

Case Name
J
u

Nature of Case
Outside Counsel to 

Page 2

Attachment B



Outside Counsel
Fees and Costs of Open Cases

as of June 19, 2015

Category Fees Costs Total

Condemnation Litigation 1,167,151.39$   231,453.85$   1,398,605.24$   
Inverse Condemnation Litigation 1,382,564.88$   268,176.83$   1,650,741.71$   
Construction Litigation 0 0 0
Personnel Litigation 0 0 0
Tort Claim Litigation 0 0 0

2,549,716.27$   499,630.68$   3,049,346.95$   

Attachment B



                                                                                                                                                  6/23/2015

TO: PUBLIC SAFETY, DIRECTOR NDOT,  HIGHWAY SAFETY COORDINATOR, 

NDOT TRAFFIC ENGINEERING, FHWA, LVMPD, RENO PD.

FROM: THE OFFICE OF TRAFFIC SAFETY, FATAL ANALYSIS REPORTING SYSTEM (FARS)

SUBJECT: FATAL CRASHES AND FATALITIES BY COUNTY, PERSON TYPE, DAY, MONTH, YEAR AND PERCENT CHANGE.

Crashes Fatals Crashes Fatals Crashes Fatals

6/22/2015 1 2 6/22/2014 1 1 0 1

MONTH 18 19 MONTH 19 21 -1 -2

YEAR 125 139 119 134 6 5

CRASH AND FATAL COMPARISON BETWEEN 2014 AND 2015, AS OF CURRENT DATE. 

2014 2015 2014 2015

COUNTY 2014 2015 % 2014 2015 % Alcohol Alcohol % Alcohol Alcohol %

Crashes Crashes CHANGE Fatalites Fatalities Change Crashes Crashes Change Fatalities Fatalities Change

CARSON 2 1 -50.00% 3 1 -66.67% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

CHURCHILL 2 1 -50.00% 2 1 -50.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

CLARK 66 80 21.21% 70 89 27.14% 19 6 -68.42% 21 7 -66.67%

DOUGLAS 1 3 200.00% 1 3 200.00% 0 1 100.00% 0 1 100.00%

ELKO 6 2 -66.67% 9 2 -77.78% 2 1 -50.00% 2 1 -50.00%

ESMERALDA 1 2 100.00% 2 2 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

EUREKA 3 2 -33.33% 4 2 -50.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

HUMBOLDT 8 0 -100.00% 9 0 -100.00% 1 0 -100.00% 1 0 -100.00%

LANDER 3 4 33.33% 3 4 33.33% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

LINCOLN 0 3 300.00% 0 3 300.00% 0 1 100.00% 0 1 100.00%

LYON 5 3 -40.00% 6 4 -33.33% 3 1 -66.67% 3 1 -66.67%

MINERAL 0 1 100.00% 0 2 200.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

NYE 3 5 66.67% 4 5 25.00% 0 2 200.00% 0 2 200.00%

PERSHING 1 0 -100.00% 1 0 -100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

STOREY 1 1 0.00% 1 1 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

WASHOE 17 16 -5.88% 19 19 0.00% 4 1 -75.00% 4 2 -50.00%

WHITE PINE 0 1 100.00% 0 1 100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

YTD 119 125 5.04% 134 139 3.73% 29 13 -55.17% 31 15 -51.61%

TOTAL 14 267 ----- -53.2% 290 ----- -52.1% ----- #DIV/0! ----- #DIV/0!

2014 AND 2015 ALCOHOL CRASHES AND FATALITIES ARE BASED ON VERY PRELIMINARY DATA.

COMPARISON OF FATALITIES BY PERSON TYPE BETWEEN 2014 AND 2015, AS OF CURRENT DATE.

2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015

COUNTY Vehicle Vehicle % 2014 2015 % Motor- Motor- % 2014 2015 % Other Other

Occupants Occupants Change Peds Peds Change Cyclist Cyclist Change Bike Bike Change

moped,at

v

moped,at

v

CARSON 0 1 100.00% 0 0 0.00% 3 0 -100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

CHURCHILL 2 1 -50.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

CLARK 30 40 33.33% 19 23 21.05% 16 13 -18.75% 0 6 600.00% 5 7

DOUGLAS 1 2 100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 1 100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

ELKO 9 2 -77.78% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

ESMERALDA 2 2 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

EUREKA 4 2 -50.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

HUMBOLDT 7 0 -100.00% 1 0 -100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 1 0

LANDER 2 2 0.00% 1 1 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

LINCOLN 0 3 300.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

LYON 3 4 33.33% 1 0 -100.00% 1 0 -100.00% 1 0 -100.00% 0 0

MINERAL 0 2 200.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

NYE 4 5 25.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

PERSHING 1 0 -100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

STOREY 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 1 1 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

WASHOE 8 12 50.00% 4 4 0.00% 4 3 -25.00% 2 0 -100.00% 1 0

WHITE PINE 0 1 100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

YTD 73 79 8.22% 26 28 7.69% 25 18 -28.00% 3 6 100.00% 7 7

TOTAL 14 147 ----- -46.26% 71 ----- -60.56% 55 ----- -67.27% 8 ----- -25.00% 9 -----

Total 2014 290

CURRENT SAME DATE LAST YEAR # CHANGE

Attachment C



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 Date:  June 27, 2015 
TO: Department of Transportation Board of Directors 

FROM: Rudy Malfabon, Director 

SUBJECT: July 6, 2015 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 

Item #12: Briefing by the Regional Transportation Commission of Southern Nevada 

regarding the Transportation Investment Business Plan – Informational 

item only. 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Summary:   

 
Tina Quigley, General Manager of the Regional Transportation Comission (RTC)  of Southern 
Nevada, will provide an informational update to the State Transportation Board of Directors 
regarding the Transportation Investment Business Plan.   
 

Background:   

The Transportation Investment Business Plan (TIBP) is an effort spearheaded by the 
Regional Transportation Commission of Southern Nevada with the assistance of the Las 
Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority and many business and transportation 
stakeholders. This collaboration has a singular goal: to create an efficient, high-quality 
transportation experience that is uniquely Las Vegas. The outcome of this effort will be a 
consensus-driven business plan to guide regional infrastructure investment and economic 
development. The TIBP will transform the future of Las Vegas via infrastructure and 
transportation development. Peer cities from around the globe were studied to identify state-
of-the art mobility options and understand best practices in urban planning. This research 
confirmed that innovations in transportation and infrastructure are essential to securing a 
city’s long-term economic growth and sustainability. Las Vegas naturally evolved with a 
narrow focus on limited transportation options, it has even greater potential to be 
transformed. Once the plan is complete, the RTC will seek financing and will support others 
that seek financing to implement projects based on the recommendations of the plan. This 
briefing will provide an overview of the TIBP to the Transportation Board of Directors. 

Analysis: 
 
N/A 
 

List of Attachments: 
 
N/A 
 

Recommendation for Board Action: 
 

 

1263 South Stewart Street 

Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 

Fax:      (775) 888-7201 



 

Information item only. 
 

Prepared by: 
 
Rudy Malfabon, P.E., Director 


	Agenda
	Item #2
	Item #5
	Item #6
	Item #7
	Item #8
	Item #9
	Item #10
	Item #11
	Item #11 Attachment A
	Item #11 Attachment B
	Item #11 Attachment C
	Item #12



